The Big Spiritual Picture

by Gene Moody

THE BIG SPIRITUAL PICTURE

By Gene Moody

DELIVERANCE MINISTRIES GENE B. MOODY 14930 JEFFERSON HIGHWAY BATON ROUGE, LA 70817-5217 www.GeneMoody.com

> Telephone: (225) 755-8870 Fax: (225) 755-6120

NOT COPYRIGHTED This manual is not copyrighted. I encourage you to make copies and distribute them for the Glory of God. You may freely use the lessons as GOD directs you!

Formatting, cover design, toc and numbering by SpiritualWarfareSchool.com

THE BIG SPIRITUAL PICTURE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1 - THE BIG SPIRITUAL PICTURE	6
SUMMARY	6
COMMENTS	6
SATAN	7
CURSES	7
SPIRITUAL WARFARE	7
AUTHORITY OF CHRISTIANS	8
THE GREAT COMMISSION	8
Scripture	8
Process	8
JESUS CHRIST	8
PROPHESY SCRIPTURE	8
TIME IS SHORT	9
ONE-WORLD RELIGION	9
ENDGAME	9
THE FOUR HORSEMEN OF THE APOCALYPSE	10
WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD FOR AMERICA?	10
THE GREAT AND FINAL APOSTASY	10
THE LIBERAL GAME PLAN	10
PRESIDENTS AND KINGS	10
FAMINE	11
THE FINAL COUNTDOWN	11
The Jewish People	11
Modern technology	11
Worldwide Upheaval	11
The Rise Of Falsehood	11
The Rise Of Wickedness	11
The Rise Of Apostasy	
One World Religion	12
One World Government	12
One World Economy	12
The Mark Of The Beast	12
Reference	12
SECTION 2 - WHAT IS HAPPENING IN/TO THE WORLD?	13
PREFACE	14
WORLD	14
World Problems	14
Europe	15
Abortion	15
Political Correctness	15
Life Span Of Civilizations	15

AMERICA	16
Government	16
Political	16
Nation	16
America	. 17
AntiChrist Sabotage Of America	. 17
Tragic Problems In Our Country	
Judgment: The God Of Divine Judgment	
Economy	
Socialism	
RELIGIONS	. 20
Islam	
Catholicism	
Religion	
FAMILY	
State Of The Family	
Feminism	
Ahab And Jezebel	
Heterosexual Assault	
Suicide	
CHRISTIANITY	
Apostate Church	
Church And Society	
War Against Christians	
The Bible	
Missions	
Persecution	
Remnant	
Biblical Warning	
Stand And Fight	
Church And Society	
MORALS	
Morals	
Moral Degeneration	
Crime	
Media	
END TIMES	
END TIMES	
Next Generation	
Signs Of The Times	
Strong Delusion	
Luciferian Endgame	
Aliens	
OTHER	
Education	
Traditions	29

Weather	29
OVERALL	30
EPILOGUE	30
REFERENCES	31
SECTION 3 - WRESTLE, BIND, LOOSE, AND COMMAND	32
COMMENTS	
Ephesians 6:12	32
Eph. 6:10-18	33
Isa. 45:11	33
Matthew 10:7-8	33
Matthew 18:18	33
Mark 16:17	33
Luke 10:19	33
Power	34
SCRIPTURE	34
SCRIPTURE KEYS	34
OVERALL PRAYER	34
OVERALL COMMAND	35
OVERALL WARFARE	35
DECLARATION	35
SECTION 4 - ONE WORLD ORDER	37
OVERVIEW	37
END TIMES	38
FAMINE NOW	39
THE FOUR HORSEMEN OF THE APOCALYPSE	39
TIME IS SHORT	39
BATTLE CRY	40
WARNING	40
END OF THE AGE SIGNS	41
LAST SIGNS	41
SIGNS 0F THE TERMINAL GENERATION	42
THE GREAT AND FINAL APOSTASY	43
DECEPTION AND FALSE TEACHING	43
CONDITIONS IN CHURCHES	43
JEZEBEL VS. ELIJAH	44
WARRING AGAINST FORCES OF EVIL	
PROPHECIES, DREAMS & VISIONS FOR AMERICA AND THE WORLD	45
WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD FOR AMERICA?	
WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD FOR CHRISTIANS?	46
THE LIBERAL GAME PLAN	
POLITICS	
TEN TRUTHS THAT MUST BE TOLD	
CHRISTIAN MEDIA	
ENDGAME	48

SECTION 5 - PRAYERS FOR SELF, FAMILY, NATION AND WORLD	
OVERALL PRAYER	
Prayer Against Terrorism	
THE LORD'S PRAYER	
GENE'S PRAYERS	
Gene's Ministry	
Gene's Personal Life	
Nathan, Marie, Nat, Natasha And Rachel	
For Other Families	
Other People	
GENE'S DAILY PRAYERS	
Prayer of Thanksgiving	
Prayer at the Breakfast Table	
Prayer for the Day	
Prayer in a Restaurant	
PRAYERS	
Praise, Honor And Worship	
General	
How To Pray	
Praying For Government	
Prayer For Loved Ones	
Prayer For Jews	
Prayer For Protection	
Prayer For Enemies	
Prayer For America	
Prayer for Other Christians	
Prayer for Enemies	
Prayer for Money Worshippers	
Prayer for the Heathen	
Prayer for Personal Relationships	
Prayer For The Covenant Of The Blood	
Prayer For A Hedge Of Protection	
Prayer For Defiling The Temple Of God	
Prayer for the Catholic Church	
Prayer For The Deceitful	
Prayer for Favor	
Prayer to Follow God's Will	57
PRAYERS FOR CHURCHES	
Prayer For Christianity	
Prayer For Apostate Church	
PRAYER TO ESTABLISH BASIS FOR WARFARE	
PRAYER BEFORE DELIVERANCE	
PRAYERS	
Prayer For Christianity	
Prayer For Apostate Church	
Prayer Against Violent Weather	

Prayer Against Witches	59
PRAYER FOR NATIONAL SINS	
PRAYER FOR JUDGMENTS	59
PRAYER OF FORGIVENESS	59
SECTION 6 - COUNTERFEIT BIBLES	61
SCRIPTURE	
PROCLAMATION	61
PROOF OF THE BIBLE	61
PROOF OF THE KING JAMES BIBLE	
WARNING	
KING JAMES VERSION	
MANUSCRIPTS	
ATTACK	
LEADERS	
SATAN'S GOAL	
DIFFERENT VERSIONS	
TRUTH	63

SECTION 1 - THE BIG SPIRITUAL PICTURE

CONTENTS

1. SUMMARY

- 2. COMMENTS
- 3. SATAN
- 4. CURSES
- 5. SPIRITUAL WARFARE
- 6. AUTHORITY OF CHRISTIANS
- 7. THE GREAT COMMISSION
 - 1. Scripture
 - 2. Process
- 8. JESUS CHRIST

SPIRITUAL PICTURE SUMMARY

THE UNDERSTANDING OF THE COMING EVENTS IS FORETOLD IN GOD'S WORD. Christianity is being destroyed by persecution, world religions, hatred, Church apostasy, counterfeit Bibles and other satanic devices. There will be a One-World Economy controlled by a small group of people. The One-World Health System will control mental and physical. THE JUDGMENT OF GOD is on America and has been since 1962 when America began to take GOD out of public life.

<u>America is being destroyed by GOD's Judgment</u>. It is being destroyed by those who are anti-Christ, anti-America and for one-world government. It is being destroyed by those who despise America, America's prosperity, standing in the world, trust in GOD, generosity and goodness.

There will be devastating effects on America as we are taken down the road of destruction. We are being destroyed by abortion, homosexuality and sexual sin; overall evil; Supreme Court and other activist courts; weather; terrorism; obsessions; liberal politicians and crooked politics; Satan's Kingdom, New Age, cults, occultism, witchcraft and Satanism; evolution and humanism; love of money and billionaires wanting total control of world.

COMMENTS

Matt. 7:14, 22-23 Because strait is the gate, and narrow is the way, which leadeth unto life, and few there be that find it. Many will say to me in that day, LORD, LORD, have we not prophesied in thy name? and in thy name have cast out devils? and in thy name done many wonderful works? and then will I profess unto them, I never knew you: depart from me, ye that work iniquity. You can prophesy, cast out devils and do many wonderful works. If you work iniquity and do not know THE LORD, you are going to Hell.

About thirty years ago, Howard Pittman died, went to Heaven and GOD sent him back to be an evangelist. He saw 50 people pass through the tunnel after death to Heaven; the angel told him that 1950 went to Hell. That is 2.5% of the world's population; <u>97.5% are going to Hell</u>. GOD told him that 25% of the people in The Church are going to Heaven; <u>75% are going to Hell</u>.

Today, the statistics are less than 1% are saved and more than 99% are going to Hell. I believe that less than one out of four in the Church today are saved because of apostasy.

Christianity is serious and not a spectator sport! GOD holds The Church accountable for the sins of the nation, not the government. Does GOD know you? Are you working iniquity?

SATAN

Part of Rev. 12:9 --- The Devil, and Satan, which deceiveth the whole world---. Notice that the whole world has been deceived. This includes all of humanity and even Christianity. How have you been deceived? Jer. 5:21 Hear now this, O foolish people, and without understanding; which have eyes, and see not; which have ears, and hear not. The world is deceived, foolish and without understanding. Christians and the world don't believe and follow The Holy Bible!

CURSES

Curses come upon us from:

- 1. Nationalities
- 2. Sins of the ancestors (any of 2044 in ten generations)
- 3. Sins committed by ourselves
- 4. Sins committed against ourselves
- 5. Sins committed by descendants
- 6. Sins by others in spiritual, secular and carnal authority
- 7. Overall: Nationalities, Ancestors, descendants, others and ourselves
- 8. What curses are you under?

SPIRITUAL WARFARE

Matt. 18:18 verily I say unto you, whatsoever ye shall <u>bind</u> (bonds, fasten, tie, <u>restrain</u>) on earth shall be <u>bound</u> in heaven: and whatsoever ye shall <u>loose</u> (break, <u>destroy</u>) on earth shall be <u>loosed</u> in heaven [bind (restrain) - loose (destroy)]

Eph. 6:12 for we <u>wrestle</u> (<u>contend - strive</u>, <u>combat - engage</u>, <u>move - force</u>) not against flesh and blood, but against <u>principalities</u>, against <u>powers</u>, against the <u>rulers of the</u> <u>darkness of this world</u>, against <u>spiritual wickedness in high places</u> we do not wrestle against human beings and the demons within them in the first heaven. Are you wrestling against the supernatural fallen angels in the second heaven (satan's throne)? Read Eph. 6:10-18. (wrestle)

AUTHORITY OF CHRISTIANS Scripture

Matt. 10:7-8 and as ye go, preach, saying, <u>the kingdom of heaven is at hand. Heal the sick</u>, <u>cleanse the lepers</u>, <u>raise the dead</u>, <u>cast out devils</u>: freely ye have received, freely give (heal - cleanse - raise - cast).

Mark 16:17 and these signs shall follow them that believe; in my name shall they cast out devils; they shall speak with new tongues (signs - cast - speak).

Luke 10:19 <u>behold, I give unto you power</u> (delegated authority) <u>to tread on serpents and</u> <u>scorpions</u> (demonic angels and spirits) <u>and over all the power of the enemy</u> (the kingdom of evil) <u>and nothing shall by any means hurt you</u>. (power - tread - nothing).

THE GREAT COMMISSION Scripture

Mark 16:15-20 and he said unto them, go ye into <u>all the world</u>, and preach the gospel <u>to</u> <u>every creature</u>. He that believeth and is baptized shall be saved; but he that believeth not shall be damned. And <u>these signs shall follow them that believe</u>, in my name shall they cast out devils; they shall speak with new tongues; they shall take up serpents; and if they drink any deadly thing, it shall not hurt them; they shall lay hands on the sick, and they shall recover. So then after the lord had spoken unto them, he was received up into heaven, and sat on the right hand of god. And they went forth, and preached every where, the lord working with them, and confirming the word with signs following.

Process

- 1. You will receive The Gospel (Preaching by others).
- 2. You will get saved (Salvation).
- 3. You will get water baptized (Baptism in Water).
- 4. Signs will follow you, the believer (Signs, Wonders and Miracles).
- 5. You will cast out devils (Deliverance).
- 6. You will speak with new tongues (Baptism in THE HOLY SPIRIT).
- 7. God will protect you, the believer (Supernaturally).
- 8. You will pray for the sick and they will recover (Healing).
- 9. You will go forth (Preaching).
- 10. GOD will confirm The Word (with Signs Following).
- 11. Are you performing The Great Commission?

JESUS CHRIST

JESUS CHRIST came to preach The Gospel, Heal The Sick and Cast Out Demons. That is what every Christian should do. Are you preaching, healing and casting?

PROPHESY PICTURE PROPHESY SCRIPTURE

Psa. 9:17 the wicked shall be turned into hell, and all the nations that forget god. (America has forgotten god.)

Matt. 15:14 let them alone: they be blind leaders of the blind. And if the blind lead the blind both shall fall into the ditch. (blind pastors leading blind congregations.)

Matt. 24:32-34 now learn a parable of the fig tree; when his branch is yet tender, and putteth forth leaves, ye know that summer is nigh: so likewise ye, when ye shall see all these things, <u>know that it is near, even at the doors</u>. Verily I say unto you, this generation shall not pass, till all these things be fulfilled. (do you see what is happening to the world?)

2 Thes. 2:3 let no man deceive you by any means: for that day shall not come, <u>except</u> there come a falling away first, (apostasy) and that man of sin be revealed, the son of perdition (son of doom). (falling away of the church)

TIME IS SHORT

I believe that GOD told me:

1. We are in the last hours of the last days of the end times.

2. America is under the severe (stern, austere, strict, harsh, grievous, serious) judgment of GOD.

3. We are in the culmination (climactic decisive point) of the ages (end of the age and world as we know it).

4. As it was in the days of Lot and Noah, it will be in the days of The Son Of Man (destruction - sodomy and gross evil).

ONE-WORLD RELIGION

The AntiChrist will rule the One-World Religion. He will do everything he can to eliminate Christianity and Christians, or make them accept other religions as valid as Christianity. Christianity believes that other religions are false. Whatever religion or combination of major religions are in control: Catholic, Jewish, Muslim, Hindu or Buddhist will martyr Christians. <u>No religion can compete with Christianity, so they must eliminate Christians in some way</u>.

ENDGAME

The process will probably go from independent nations to ten unions of combined nations to the world without nations:

1. We will go from America to the North American Union to the One-World Government to the End Of The Tribulation (beginning of The Millennium).

2. The projected dates are: North American Union - 2010, One-World Government - 2012 and End Of The Tribulation - 2019 (allowing seven years for The Tribulation).

3. I believe that Christians will go through the Tribulation (first 3 1/2 years) but we will be protected from THE WRATH OF GOD in The Great Tribulation (last 3 1/2 years).

4. The agreement for the North American Union has been signed by the presidents. Why do you think they are trying to legalize the illegal immigration? Not only that, but we need the people for workers. Americans are not having enough babies to sustain the workforce. The same thing is happening in England with the resulting Muslim immigration. We are killing the babies of the future and importing workers from other countries to take their place.

THE FOUR HORSEMEN OF THE APOCALYPSE

1. The first horseman, AntiChrist.

2. The second horseman, War.

3. The third horseman, Great Famine, Destruction Of The World's Crops and Wildlife, and Economic Collapse.

4. The fourth horseman, Death, Warfare, Disease And Famine.

WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD FOR AMERICA?

1. The New World Order will cost money, words and blood.

2. Exciting, difficult and frightening times lie ahead.

3. The Book Of The Gentiles is almost complete. The Book Of The Jews will then be opened. Are you in The Book Of Life?

THE GREAT AND FINAL APOSTASY

1. Apostate Church; Christian Hatred and Detention Camps; Executions and Christians Beheaded; Mark Of The Beast and other Persecutions.

2. Witchcraft is the fastest growing religion in the United States.

3. The new gospel dismisses The Divinity Of CHRIST, the reality of Hell and Judgment, biblical standards of purity and morality, to defame THE NAME OF CHRIST, to call GOD "she" and to say The Church has no HEAVENLY FATHER.

4. The New Testament is filled with predictions of a last-days falling away. Wolves will come in sheep's clothing bringing powerful deceptions to deceive, if possible, even the elect of God.

THE LIBERAL GAME PLAN

1. Anti-Life Agenda, Anti-Religious Freedom, Anti-Marriage, Anti-Family

2. Hate Crime Legislation, Fairness Doctrine, Immigration Reform

3. Judicial Nominations, National Health Care, Homosexual Orientation

4. It was very traumatic what the extremely liberal Democratic Congress and President did against true Christianity.

PRESIDENTS AND KINGS

1. Deut. 28:43 <u>The stranger</u> (alien, sojourner) that is within thee shall get up above thee very high; and thou shalt come down very low.

2. Dan. 4:17 This matter is by the decree of the watchers, and the demand by The Word Of The Holy One: to the intent that the living may know that The Most High ruleth in the kingdom of men, and giveth it to whomsoever He will, and <u>setteth up over it</u> the basest of men.

3. GOD puts presidents and kings in power. GOD told Earline, we get what we deserve. GOD did this to bring severe judgment on Apostate Christianity and America. Obama's anti-Christian actions prove his loyalty. The curse is the absence or reversal of a blessing, falling from our rightful state and being lowered to a lesser state.

FAMINE

1. There will be famine and political instability on a world-wide scale.

2. GOD is breaking up the food chain with natural disasters.

THE FINAL COUNTDOWN The Jewish People

1. Israel would return to the land.

2. Israel would become a nation again.

3. Israel would be brought forth in a day.

4. Israel would be a united nation again.

5. Israel's currency would be the shekel.

6. Israel would blossom as a rose in the desert.

7. Israel would have a powerful military.

8. Israel would be a center of conflict to the whole world.

9. Israel would rebuild the temple (future).

Modern technology

1. There would be a great increase of travel.

2. There would be an increase of knowledge.

3. There would be an increase of unrest.

Worldwide Upheaval

- 1. There would be an increase of earthquakes.
- 2. There would be an increase of **famines.**
- 3. There would be an increase of **pestilence.**
- 4. There would be an increase of wars.

The Rise Of Falsehood

1. There would be an increase of **false Christs.**

2. There would be an increase of **false teachers.**

3. New Age Movement

- 1. Is seducing people by promoting a healthy earth.
- 2. Is seducing people by promoting a healthy body.
- 3. Is seducing people by promoting a heavenly host.

The Rise Of Wickedness

- 1. People would love themselves more than GOD.
 - 1. Because of the **promotion of a wicked worldview.**
 - 2. Because of the promotion of a wicked worship.
 - 3. Because of the promotion of a wicked witchcraft.

The Rise Of Apostasy

1. People would deliberately turn away from the truth.

- 1. By a focus on marketing madness.
- 2. By a focus on money and materialism.
- 3. By a focus on magnificent miracles.

- 4. By a focus on making my own doctrine.
 - 1. The Politically Correct Version
 - 2. The New Feminist Version
 - 3. The New Post Modern Version

One World Religion

- 1. There will be a worldwide worship of the AntiChrist (future).
 - 1. A watering down of the truth.
 - 2. A worldwide assault on Christians.
 - 3. A welcoming of all faiths.

One World Government

- 1. There will be a worldwide authority of the AntiChrist (future).
 - 1. Because of a universal congress.
 - 2. Because of universal behavior.
 - 3. Because of universal big brother.

One World Economy

- 1. There will be worldwide economy of the AntiChrist (future).
 - 1. Due to a universal banking system.
 - 2. Due to a universal currency.

The Mark Of The Beast

- 1. There will be a worldwide mark of the AntiChrist (future).
- 1. Because the technology is already here.
- 2. Because the justification is already here.
 - 1. They promise to make our lives more pampered.
 - 2. They promise to make our lives more productive.
 - 3. They promise to make our lives more protected.
- 3. Because the willingness is already here.
 - 1. They've already put them into pets.
 - 2. They've already put them into people.

Reference

The Final Countdown by Billy Crone

SECTION 2 - WHAT IS HAPPENING IN/TO THE WORLD?

CONTENTS

- 1. PREFACE
- 2. WORLD
 - 1. WORLD PROBLEMS
 - 2. EUROPE
 - 3. ABORTION
 - 4. POLITICAL CORRECTNESS
 - 5. LIFE SPAN OF CIVILIZATIONS
- 3. AMERICA
 - 1. GOVERNMENT
 - 2. POLITICAL
 - 3. NATION
 - 4. AMERICA
 - 5. ANTICHRIST SABOTAGE OF AMERICA
 - 6. TRAGIC PROBLEMS IN OUR COUNTRY
 - 7. JUDGMENT
 - 8. ECONOMY
 - 9. SOCIALISM
- 4. RELIGIONS
 - 1. ISLAM
 - 2. CATHOLICISM
 - 3. RELIGION
- 5. FAMILY
 - 1. STATE OF THE FAMILY
 - 2. FEMINISM
 - 3. AHAB AND JEZEBEL
 - 4. HETEROSEXUAL ASSAULT
 - 5. SUICIDE
- 6. CHRISTIANITY
 - 1. APOSTATE CHURCH
 - 2. CHURCH AND SOCIETY
 - 3. WAR AGAINST CHRISTIANS
 - 4. THE BIBLE
 - 5. MISSIONS
 - 6. PERSECUTION
 - 7. REMNANT
 - 8. BIBLICAL WARNING
 - 9. CHURCH AND SOCIETY
- 7. MORALS
 - 1. MORALS
 - 2. MORAL DEGENERATION
 - 3. CRIME
 - 4. MEDIA

- 8. END TIMES
- END TIMES
 NEXT GENERATION
 SIGNS OF THE TIMES
 STRONG DELUSION
 LUCIFERIAN ENDGAME
 ALIENS
 OTHER
 EDUCATION
 TRADITIONS
 WEATHER
 OVERALL
 EPILOGUE
- 12. REFERENCES

PREFACE

This is a continuation of the SPIRITUAL WARFARE PRAYER BOOK, LAST HOURS - LAST DAYS - END TIMES. There is not room to continue adding to the lessons therein. The world is rapidly changing leading to the One World Order. Most importantly, sin - the root of every problem in the world.

The fool has said in his heart, There is no GOD (Psa. 14:1a). The sure WORD OF GOD is not theories, guesses and speculations of men. Compare what is happening now with the prophecies in The Bible.

WORLD

World Problems

This is a turbulent time of radical religious terrorism, HIV-AIDS pandemic and crippling natural disasters: wars, disasters, storms, floods, famines, persecution, earthquakes and epidemics causing sickness, suffering and death for Christians and others. The world is breaking down. Mysterious monuments enshroud the world with magic, seduction, occult wisdom, Masonic geometry and sacred numerology. The world is blind and deaf.

Africa faces Islam, tribal religions, village medicine, spiritual warfare, wars, poverty, drought, famine, floods, street children, widows, orphans, rampant diseases, corrupt governments, genocide, etc. America is headed in that direction.

European-Christian core of the area is shrinking, as Christianity fades, the birth rate falls, and Third World immigration surges. Globalism dissolves the economic bonds, while the cacophony of multiculturalism displaces the old culture. There is religious oppression, persecution and suffering of Christians, exploitation of human labor and immigrants, corruption and other forms of sin.

We are headed for more war and a totalitarian police state. We are governed by large corporation cartels. We are called useful idiots, innocents, dupes. Media and education is controlled. They want absolute domination of credit, power, culture, property and wealth;

the concentration of political, economic and intellectual power into the hands of a small group of individuals. The Devil operates by deceiving and corrupting good people. Homosexuality and pedophilia is promoted. The world is seduced, destroyed, executed and incendiated. Trashing Christian mores, creating dysfunction, undermining gender and marriage, peddling promiscuity, pornography, homosexuality and abortion, and trampling innocence, decorum and human dignity, overthrow GOD and replace Him with Satan. This new civilization will self destruct and GOD will have a hand in the destruction.

Europe

For decades, country after country in Europe has ignored GOD, believing Satan's lies of evolution, security and prosperity through socialism, happiness through material wealth, salvation and utopia through education, and peace through tolerance. Long ago sins such as abortion, sodomy, pornography and prostitution were legalized. Marxist governments can no longer deliver the security promised and are scrambling to avoid rioting in the streets. They are facing Sharia (Islamic law). Europe has become a spiritual wasteland. Religion and spirituality was irrelevant for day-to-day living. The pope wants to fill the vacuum with his prostitute church's false gospel of pagan rituals and spiritual bondage.

Abortion

35.000 babies are lost everyday in China, not to mention cases of pregnant mothers being kidnapped, abused, and forced to abort up until the ninth month. To restore life, value and dignity to girls and mothers in China and to reveal the injustice of China's One-Child Policy.

Black genocide - the devastation occurring in black America as a result of abortion. The illusion of sex without consequences. 30% black women vs. 12% of U.S. population. 25% is poverty entrenched. 40% birth to unwed mothers. 70% chance of living in a single parent home. 50% chance of being aborted.

Annual income for abortion is over one billion dollars. It is amazing of man's inhumanity. Over 53,000,000 innocent babies have been murdered. Body parts are sold to laboratories and research hospitals. Gruesome techniques are partial-birth, self-poisoning, and dilation and evacuation. Abortion interests guard their turf and money. Those who have had an abortion have post-abortion grief, aggravated by guilt.

Political Correctness

Political correctness dodges the real issue of Islamic terrorism. America and the West suffer from debilitating denial. You can play the word game and manipulate reality anyway you choose but it doesn't change the situation. There is blatantly intolerant political correctness suppressing dissent of abortion.

Life Span Of Civilizations

From the beginning of history, the average life span of the world's greatest civilizations has been about 200 years. Systems of government transitioned from bondage to spiritual faith to great courage to liberty to abundance to complacency to apathy to dependence and finally to bondage.

AMERICA Government

When government and people reject GOD, GOD will allow them to have what they ask for. The government is dominated by political interests and can be swayed by anti-Christian special-interest groups. The government is out of control. America was supposed to be ruled from the bottom up, not controlled from the top down. Government is ineffective at best and often wrong. A broken government with confused leaders. Curses come on the people such as new diseases of AIDS, Legionnaires, Cancer, Lupus, Muscular Dystrophy, Parkinson's, Alzheimer's, Multiple Sclerosis and other threats.

Anti-Christian, pro-abortion, anti-marriage, anti-religious freedom, out-of control spending, government takeover of health care and radical pro-abortion and anti-family policies. Your telephone, mail, computer and medical records are now subject to governmental search.

The campaign over the last dozen decades to discredit the Biblical lifestyle has helped destroy the one solution to the immigration problem. There are over 150 languages spoken in the U.S. The land is filled with false religion. Is The President a Christian or a Moslem? The United States has not been victorious in war for the last sixty years.

Political

Some politicians see nothing wrong with Feds torturing suspects, slamming citizens into gulag prison cells, censoring internet, checking mail, wiretapping phones, and otherwise monitoring daily lives. Billions are spent on welfare, education, and healthcare for the millions of foreigners in our country; the politicians want to make them citizens. Homosexual and liberal nonprofits get billions in government grants. America is being deconstructed, and beat down into a Third World economy. The unnecessary wars in the Middle East (Iraq, Afghanistan, Pakistan and in the future Syria and Iran) are costing billions and thousands of lives. The leaders of America have made a mockery out of The Constitution and GOD.

Nation

The country generally tolerates the killing of millions of children (abortion). Government authorities and courts continue to force Christian symbols (crosses, nativity scenes, Ten Commandments displays, etc.) out of public places. Society continues to undermine the institution of marriage by legalizing **gay** marriage. We continue to see increased secularization of the public education system and pretend such places are neutral, and THE CREATOR GOD has been removed and replaced with religion of naturalism / evolution. We disguise euthanasia in clever wording, as we call it a part of **health care**.

America

Between twenty and thirty million are unemployed. 10% of population is living on food stamps, eight million homes have been repossessed and war with Iran will cause economic contraction.

Widespread unemployment, unmanageable social programs and complete breakdown of moral values. Social Security, Medicare and Medicaid are broke. The nation is bankrupt with banking systems collapsing.

Families are broken and social fabric of culture that once was our strength is now torn and tattered. Many of churches seem weak and ineffective. We are overrun with immorality and pornography, blasphemy and ungodliness and perversion of every sort. The Jews own Hollywood and hold high offices in the nation's capital.

America has lost 42,400 factories; the massive loss of factory jobs to China and technology jobs to India. 55% have experienced unemployment, cut in pay, reduction in hours or part time work.

This year's census found nearly 38 million immigrants in the country with an estimated 11.9 million here illegally.

America has plunged into political, moral and social depravity over the past several years. The philosophy was grounded in material success, self-love, making it in business and social circles and believing in inherent goodness of humanity not man's unthinkable cruelty to man. Progressive politicians or feel-good, New Age theological hirelings, liberal revolutionaries, unregenerate mankind. Bring down America and the West and return to the burned-out failures of old socialist / Marxist empires.

AntiChrist Sabotage Of America

The prophets prophesy falsely and the priests bear rule by their means, and my people love to have it so (Jer. 5:31). Of a truth many houses shall be desolate (Isa. 5:9). Homes in Chicago are for sale for one dollar but nobody wants them. We are now in another great depression. FDIC is broke.

Major events of history happened by design and manipulation which include every major war and revolution. The United States has been spiritually, economically, structurally and morally dismantled. Occultism and witchcraft proceeded drug culture. Empires fell because of extreme debt and excessive spending. There are continued wars, rumors of wars and distress of nations. Chlorine causes arteries to harden; fluoride affects the brain. A deep sleep is upon the people, darkness has covered the earth and gross darkness the people.

Nihilists have viewpoints that traditional values and beliefs are unfounded...a doctrine that denies any objective ground of truth and especially of moral truths. There are some radical, politically correct, left-wing judges dispensing loathsome

decisions. Patriots are something often scorned these days. There is a conspiracy to tear the Judeo-Christian foundations of the republic from beneath our feet. The enemies of JESUS CHRIST are offended. America is headed into the slums of paganism and abject spiritual deprivation. The merchants of repression are on the down-with-America bandwagon. There is a radical minority's festival of hatred of GOD who made us a great nation. They are against family values, human dignity, Christian religion, freedom and liberty.

AntiChrist organizations opposes right of the unborn, parental consent rights, religious displays in public, In GOD We Trust on government. buildings and American currency, prayer in public schools, Christian home schooling, federal government ethics committees, pro-life rallies and demonstrations, school vouches, reporting of AIDS cases for medical safety reasons, prison terms for may crimes, federal government post 9/11 security measures, detaining suspected terrorists who want to harm the United States, sobriety checkpoints, drug searches and seizures. Supports baby killers, children's rights, adoption by homosexuals, tax exempt status for Satan worshippers, sex education, taxpayer funded pornographic art, mandatory public school busing, illegal immigration, child pornography, prostitution, legalized drugs, polygamy, child molesters living near schools, constitutional rights for illegal immigrants, children's rights to not be detained if their parents are here illegally, unrestricted abortions even in the third trimester.

Tragic Problems In Our Country

An unprecedented push toward socialism and Globalism. Faith and freedom under attack as never before in our lifetime. Threat of so-called Fairness Doctrine would censor conservative / Christian TV programs. Push to dismantle Defense of Marriage Act, legalize same-sex marriage nationwide. Threat to cede America's sovereignty to international courts, let other countries administer their version of justice on our citizens. Staggering buildup of government debt. Advance of pro-Muslim policies in Washington. Waves of anti-faith lawsuits by ACLU and other groups. Pro-life Americans branded by federal government as terrorists. Drive toward federal health care takeover.

The encroaching tyranny and global governance of the New World Order is in perfect accordance with Bible prophecy. America is headed for an almost certain cataclysm: federalized anti-Christian, anti-patriot acts, treaties, and executive orders. The loss of America as it is sold to foreigners, populated by enemies, governed by traitors, and monopolized by multi-national corporations. We are starving on full stomachs because food has no nutritional value. Whole colonies of bees are missing because they lose their way home.

Judgment: The God Of Divine Judgment

look at GOD's judgment through out The Bible. He makes nations great, then destroys them; He enlarges nations, then leads them away. He decides when they should rise and fall, and determined their boundaries. He changes times and epochs; He removes kings and establishes kings. GOD hands nations over to the consequences of their sin.

GOD'S REDEMPTION rejected by humans brings judgment unto destruction; there is no future for planet earth. God's judgment and scriptural curses are upon this nation! GOD uses weather to judge humans. We are headed towards a Moslem nation. This nation has turned its back on God and God has turned His Face from this nation.

GOD will send cursing, vexation (confusion), rebuke (frustration), pestilence (sickness and plagues), consumption (wasting), inflammation and fever, extreme burning (disfigurement), sword (war), blasting (locust), mildew (paleness), brass (heat and rainlessness), botch (boils), emerods (hemorrhoids), scab (scratch), itch (eruption), madness (insanity), blindness (astonishment) and other curses.

Economy

GOD may have other reasons (judgment) for the dollar's decline and with it, the decline of the United States as the world leader. Economy is crumbling. Leftists want to burden the economy with taxes and regulation. The goal is to increase taxes, destroy the American economy, devalue the dollar, and impoverish the American people.

We have an explosive situation: overpopulation, starvation, pollution, economic instability, hostages, terrorist attacks, escalating Middle east crisis, proliferation of nuclear weapons, disrupted oil supplies and daily threat of war. GOD is allowing this to happen. There could be moral implosion, peak oil, oil blackmail, nuclear attack, bioterrorism chemical warfare, suicide bombers, EMP attack, rapture or combination of these factors.

U2 unemployment is 9.6%, U6 unemployment is over 16%, and if you remove the birthdeath ratio, U6 unemployment is over 22%. 1,500,000 have lost their homes since January 2009, 4,000,000 homes are in some stage of foreclosure, the price of food and household necessities is increasing, and the FED is funding the major banks that created the problem.

Socialism

It's basically Marxism of socialism, communism and related forms. The government seizes huge portions of industry, racks up colossal debt, pushes a so-called Fairness Doctrine, and Constitution's explicit restraints on the power of the federal government are ignored. Socialism has repeatedly proven a failure, contradicts man's GOD-given nature, inherently leads to violence and is anti-biblical. Leftists want to use government to redistribute wealth, dismantle traditional marriage and family, impose international law, and much more. Christians should vote for those who embrace their moral, spiritual and political values as informed by the Scripture. Their agenda follows:

1. Destroy the concept of marriage as being one-man/one-woman. Abolish the federal Defense of Marriage Act. Tax incentives that penalize marriage and stay-at-home moms. 2. Teach homosexuality in the schools. Same-sex marriage.

3. Allow homosexuals to serve openly in the military as soldiers and commanders. Repeal Don't Ask, Don't Tell.

4. Prosecute pastors and others who call homosexuality wrong by strictly enforcing the Hate Crimes Bill. Shut down churches that speak out against the militant Homosexual Agenda.

5. Ration health care for the elderly. Government-run health care. Soviet-style Socialized Medicine in America which has failed everywhere.

6. Subordinate America and Constitution to United Nations.

7. Make it illegal to talk about some aspects of The Bible. Implement Fairness Doctrine to silence Christian and conservative radio. Policies that drive the conservative and Christian voice off the radio and internet.

8. Pass a pro-homosexual workplace discrimination law against Christians.

9. Force more government takeover of key sectors of American life. Bigger government, higher taxes and more socialism.

10. Confirm radical activist federal judges.

11. Raise taxes to fund Planned Parenthood and other dangerous and failed programs. Taxpayer funded abortion on demand.

13. Unprecedented deficits bankrupting children and grandchildren. Out of control earmarks and federal spending.

14. Harm America's standing in the world by apologizing for America Speeches.

Replace the dollar with a new international currency.

15. Eliminate In God We Trust from U.S. currency and Under God from Pledge of Allegiance. Compel Boy Scouts to remove the mention of God from its oath and force open homosexual Scout leaders.

16. Shut down much of American industry with Climate Change Law.

Knowledge

There is a continual increase in technology and knowledge. One-world government will require the masses to be tracked and controlled with technology. They will demand that all receive a chip in the right hand or forehead to buy or sell.

RELIGIONS Islam

Religion is the inhuman driving force behind the compulsion to destroy Israel; bring down the West; defeat Christianity; and establish a global, Sharia-compliant, Muslim caliphate. Thus we miss the fundamental element, religion. We are fighting in this war of civilizations, to the peril of entire cultures. Muslims in some countries have reached 20 percent or more of the population and are demanding adherence to the Sharia, Islam's Qur'an-based system of tyranny and seventh century tribal religion of pagan customs. Infiltration through **multicultural** societies is gaining control. Women are little more than sex slaves, and revenge and honor killings are the order of the day.

Undermine and overcome America from within, do away with all religions especially Christianity. We are funding our own destruction which could lead to war, famine, pestilence and death. Islam argues against The Bible, deity of CHRIST, work of CHRIST on the cross, Trinity and Christian Gospel.

Catholicism

The wide abuse of adolescent boys by the sodomite priests is still an open wound in England. Superstition and ignorance came out of popery that held over Europe for the thousand-year-long **dark ages**. Those who refused The Gospel believed in evolution, atheism, humanism, socialism, materialism, tolerance for sin, etc. Protestants were called rebellious **separate brethren**.

Religion

There is only one LORD, one faith and one baptism. Moslem is the fastest growing religion in the world. They want a Hate Crime Law where you will be jailed for speaking against that religion or any other except Christianity. Our nation has become vile and corrupt, and is committing suicide. Britain has announced that Druidry is an officially recognized religion.

Judaism has anathemas (curses) of believers in Jesus Christ. Messianic Jews are worthy of death. Christians are punished and killed when under the control of Judaism. The most wicked sacred book on the planet includes the slander of JESUS as a bastard, said to be in hell boiling forever in a vat of fiery excrement, approving sex between adults and three year-old girls or adults and nine year-old boys - even incest, and to cheat and steal from inferiors.

False doctrines include once-saved always saved, ultimate and universal reconciliation, rapture before tribulation, no judgment no matter how you live and Satan will ultimately be saved. There will be no excuse at The Great White Throne Judgment for not knowing THE WORD OF GOD.

The privatization of religion in America - the idea that religion should only be exercised in private. The banishment of religious expression and religion in general is an epidemic. There is the diminishing impact of the church on society. They want to alter history and purge America of religious references.

Evolutionary humanism has become the state-endorsed religion, resulting in immorality, sedition, human sacrifice (abortions), divorce and the breakup of the family.

In Holland a law was passed **providing fines and prison time for anyone who publicly**, **verbally or in writing or image, deliberately expresses himself in anyway insulting of a group of people because of their race, their religion or belief.**

Christianity faces the religions of worshiping inanimate objects, practicing witchcraft, and praying to the dead.

FAMILY

State Of The Family

Unmarried childbearing: the rate of births to unmarried women is 40% today. Cohabitation: there is a 14-fold increase in unmarried cohabitation since 1960. Increasing childlessness: only 40% agreed that children are very important to successful marriage in

2007. Busyness: nearly 60% of Christians say their hectic schedules prevent them from spending enough time with GOD. There are more than 1.7 million children with a mother, father or both in prison. As many as 70% of these children may end up in prison. Parents failure to discipline their children is a veritable plague these days.

Feminism

There is a sexual sabotage of society: sexual revolution, gay rights and feminism. Leading to one sex, the heterosexual-homosexual (bisexual, promiscuous and bereft of family). When females reject the male, they usurp the masculine role and abandon the feminine one. Most women want to marry and have children.

Feminists fell for this propaganda. Men can no longer be trusted. Women are victims by virtue of their sex. Women should be selfish. Sex is not reserved for love and marriage. Self-fulfillment lies in career, not family. Social engineering of women is a monstrous fraud. They want women to work out of the home. This helps to decrease population which is a goal.

Ahab And Jezebel

The spirit of Jezebel is rampant in the home, church, sports, economics, news casting, government, banking and every facet of life. Women rule is the order of the day.

Heterosexual Assault

Sexual revolution - gay rights - feminism - ultimately one sex - the hetero-homo, breakup of American family. When females reject the male, they usurp the masculine role and abandon the feminine one. Break-up marriage and you break-up society. Most women want to marry. The goal is to decrease population. Destroy female trust in men.

Suicide

In Alaska Native and Native American communities, especially among the young, almost twice as many Native young people (ages 15-29) committed suicide in 2006-2007 compared to non-Native youth. Alcoholism is rampant, incest is all too common and suicide rates rank among the highest in the world.

CHRISTIANITY Apostate Church

Stories of greed, corruption and sexual abuse have rocked the people's confidence in the professional clergy, whether Christian or Jewish. These manipulations, desecrations, alterations and corrupted Bible translations have spawned countless toxic religious systems that have been poisoning God's people for years. Inner cities are filled with boarded-up churches, closed because of fear, ignorance, prejudice, white flight, lack of funding, dwindling memberships, lack of leadership and absence of vision. People are no longer content with the empty rites and rituals of religion devoid of Spirit and life. Humanism, materialism, denominationalism and religion fail to provide what people want. GOD is treated like a four-letter word in the world.

A fundamental modification in theology in which emergent leaders resist original sin, reject substitutionary atonement, deny the existence of hell, refute inerrancy of Scripture, and cozy up to universalism. Theirs is a Christ who calls for no repentance, who embraces homosexuality and same-sex-marriage, and acceptance of false religions, supposedly in the name of tolerance and love. The church system has digressed to teach only the precepts and doctrines of their founders. Their gospel is a feel-good message designed to make everyone happy and comfortable. Don't preach against sin. Hell has been a taboo subject in the church in recent years.

Many members of the Church are just church members. They have fallen prey to the deception of mere religious knowledge. Belong to a church but are not born again. Say, **LORD, LORD** but don not belong to Him. Call themselves **Christians** but are not one with CHRIST.

They have Christianity but are lacking CHRIST. The reason for the fact that we still have no revival in America today can be found in the prayerless believers revealed in a watered-down nominal, back-slidden Christianity. The nominal Christian may know of JESUS, have heard of Him, and may even have been baptized in His Name. **Except ye be converted**, **and become as little children**, **ye shall not enter into the kingdom of heaven** (Matt. 18:3b).

The individual who knows he is born again also knows that he will be attacked by Satan. The true child of GOD is always on the offensive against the Kingdom of Darkness and will be most despised by Christians without CHRIST.

Does The Church have a vision of what GOD is doing or going to do? Are they corrupt, fleecing the flock and having sex scandals? Are the pastors ministering in pride and building their own kingdoms? Are the Christians acting or sincere? Has judgment begun at THE HOUSE OF GOD? Has The Glory departed from The Church? Do they cast out demons, anoint with oil and pray for the sick?

Church And Society

First, much of the Church needs to repent of rampant compromise with secular ideas and for not standing boldly, unashamedly, and uncompromisingly on THE WORD OF GOD. Second, the nation as a whole needs to repent of gross sin before a HOLY GOD and submit to the authority of THE CREATOR GOD OF THE BIBLE.

War Against Christians

There is a declaration of war on those who hold to the inerrancy of the Book Of Books and believe it to be the authentic, accurate way to salvation and fulfillment of JESUS' promise of an abundant life though redemption. Instability is caused by a relentless war against Christians that grows more volatile by the movement. JESUS is being kicked out of the public institutions. Genocidal anti-Semites and historical revisionist perverters of truth want a world without Jesus people. Secular elitists, radical American minorities, self-proclaimed post-Christian West, and their groupie brigades are determined to stamp out JESUS and Christianity. They want politically correct enlightenment. Those who commit the most heinous crimes are merely deprived victims. Philosophy is actually a search for truth that never seems to arrive at a conclusion. Christmas was trivialized into a festival of commercial extravagance. Theologians were telling folks The Bible wasn't all as written; and they relegated the incarnation to myth and story. What followed is an orgy of anti-Christian antagonism. The culture has arisen that denies, even detests, the thought of The Nativity. Biblical Christianity is being attacked in an increasingly secular world. There are those who hate GOD, and despise Christianity, Christians and gentiles leading to prison or extermination.

The Bible

Till heaven and earth pass, one jot or one title shall in no wise pass from the law, till all be fulfilled (Matt. 5:18). All scripture is given by inspiration of GOD (2 Tim. 3:16a). For I testify unto every man that heareth the words of the prophecy of this book, If any man shall add unto these things, GOD shall add unto him the plagues that are written in this book: And if any man shall take away from the words of the book of this prophecy, GOD shall take away his part out of the book of life, and out of the holy city, and from the things which are written in this book (Rev. 22:18-19).

Other people hate The Bible. Those have attempted to eradicate it, tear it, burn it, mock it, forbid it, cut it to pieces and criticize it. The new theology that is based on human understanding says **no** to it. Modern theology of our day call it **myth**.

Missions

Islam, Hinduism, Buddhism and Communism are opposed to Christian missions. Over 100 million children worldwide have been abandoned or orphaned by wars, floods, famines and diseases. Of the 850 million hungry people worldwide, about 25,000 die every day. Millions of women throughout the world have been sold into prostitution at a young age. America is being evangelized by foreign missionaries. In America, Christianity is a patrimony, a history, a culture but not a change of heart.

Persecution

The Bible says persecution is inevitable. They see greed, corruption and incompetence in the men who rule the country. Christians can access the spiritual bread and the great physician during persecution. As this age draws to a close, evil will grow worse and iniquity will abound (Matt. 24:2).

There is anti-Christ, anti-Jewish anti-American pro-Islam agenda of this administration with rioting and screaming mobs. Islam is a religion and violent political system. The hatred of Muslims against the infidel and calling for their destruction. Persecution, intimidation and discrimination are resulting in a severe dwindling of Christian communities across the Arab region.

The world hates Christ and hates Christians. The world persecuted Christ and will persecute Christians. Persecution, whether mild or severe, is the lot of those who seek righteousness. Those who resist following evil will be ridiculed at best, put to death at

worst. GOD'S LOVE for us doesn't guarantee that we will not be persecuted and even killed for his sake.

Remnant

There will always be a remnant following THE FATHER, SON, HOLY SPIRIT. Those who cling to the truth of Scripture and refuse to dilute the pure gospel will find themselves progressively marginalized. If you are open about your beliefs about JESUS CHRIST or Christianity, you are going to be criticized, ostracized or silenced.

Biblical Warning

Men fainting from fear of what is coming on the earth. That even the elect would be deceived if that were possible. Satan comes with all signs and lying wonders. That GOD sends them strong delusion. Signs in the heavens. It will be like the days of Noah when the SON OF MAN returns.

Stand And Fight

From corruption in Congress and court rulings that strike at the heart of religious freedom and parents' rights to increased government surveillance of law-abiding Americans and the lack of protection for the lives of unborn babies, our nation is in trouble with GOD. We may be only one terrorist's attack away from becoming a military state. We are witnessing the total secularization of America, aided and abetted by the courts, our governmental institutions and private groups. We ban even the mention of GOD in schools and public places.

Although the ACLU has fought for the speech rights of pornographers, convicted criminals, child molesters, occultists, Nazis and illegal aliens, it has consistently tried to deny those same rights to religious believers. There is increased hostility to religion and a relentless drive to secularize American public life. We need a legal revolution, a cultural revolution, as well as a revolution of ideas. There is the breakdown of the traditional family. Young people take part in adverse risky behavior: drugs, wild parties, getting arrested by police, and even suicide.

Political correctness has become the scourge of freedom in general, and religious freedom in particular. It is politically incorrect and even illegal to mention JESUS, let alone GOD. Even remotely Christian symbols are also being done away with. Everything Christian is being erased. There is no freedom for expression that offends prevailing standards of political correctness in our nation's institutions of higher learning.

Church And Society

First, much of the Church needs to repent of rampant compromise with secular ideas and for not standing boldly, unashamedly, and uncompromisingly on THE WORD OF GOD. Second, the nation as a whole needs to repent of gross sin before a HOLY GOD and submit to the authority of THE CREATOR GOD OF THE BIBLE.

MORALS Morals

The moral standard is, If it feels good, do it! Over 70% of high school and college students favor legalizing same-sex marriage. 70% of college-aged men visit porn websites every month. 40,000,000 Americans are regular visitors to pornographic websites. 33% of porn viewers are women. The average age at which a child first sees porn online is 11.

Moral Degeneration

The following is pervasive, escalating and widespread: widespread acceptance of homosexuality, barbaric practice of partial-birth abortion, over 50 million babies murdered, pornography enslaving millions as sex addicts, drug abuse and alcoholism among teenagers and adults, premarital sex, extramarital sex, promiscuity, fornication and adultery bringing sexually transmitted diseases, over a fourth of American girls between the ages of fourteen and nineteen have at least one sexually transmitted disease, family units disintegrating, divorce rate around 50 percent, many living together outside of marriage, 40 percent of women not married when they gave birth, gay couples are adopting children.

Crime

Cities have become murder capitals; lawlessness is out of control; crime in major cities increases every year; and rape, bank robberies and burglaries are at an all time high. 95% of crime is drug related.

Media

The left-leaning mainstream politically - correct media has enjoyed a decades-long reign over television. The media is corrupt and does not report the truth: astonishing anti-Christian bias. As far as the news media and most public officials are concerned, Christians don't count. If they are noticed at all, it is only with the conclusion that they are expendable. Government leaders and journalists are more concerned about not offending the perpetrators than speaking out for the afflicted.

END TIMES

End Times

Jerusalem will be a burdensome stone and a cup of trembling; all people of the earth will be gathered against it. Persecution of Bible believers is another prophetic theme. Secular materialism and evolution has succeeded in crowding Christians to the margins of the culture. The love of many will wax cold. Life is and can be very difficult. Take up the banner for religious freedom, prepare for the coming battles; hard times lie ahead.

We see the beginning of sorrows: wars and rumors of war, nations (peoples) rising against nations, kingdoms against kingdoms, famines, earthquakes and pestilence (diseases). Christians have not been taught GOD'S JUDGMENT and are not prepared. Many watchmen (hirelings) are blind dogs (unbelieving hypocrites) have no vision and love to slumber. False prophets and teachers will bring upon themselves swift destruction.

Alcohol and drug use among those in the pulpit is at an all time high. Nuclear bombs will probably be detonated in the atmosphere.

We are in a globalized humanistic state. Christians are entrapped in a global financial system. These systems will be turned against the Tribulation Saints. Our spiritual gold needs to be refined by fire. The diversity of the global financial system will be brought under one roof by the God of Forces. Churchianity, Islam, Hinduism, Buddhism and Atheism will join together.

JESUS said that spiritual deception would be a chief characteristic of the last days. There is a widespread development of spiritual deception throughout Christendom. Christians will face severe civil and religious persecution. There will be a spiritual storm, trials and tribulations, and a hard life to live. Everything that can be shaken will be shaken. Spiritually we are New Age, not Christian.

Next Generation

Ministry is more difficult than ever before because people are increasingly hostile and negative toward Christianity. Partly to blame is a major shift in the general culture. A moral system based on convenience, feelings and selfishness. The public school system teaches evolution, self-esteem, human potential, and glorification of decadent celebrities. There are significant disruptions in our economy caused by corruption (sin) in high places. Islam, secular humanists, evolutionists, Sodomites, and socialists are finding little resistance from Bible believers.

Signs Of The Times

Earth and sky signs, moral signs, religious signs, realignment-of-nations signs, technological signs, and rebirth-of-Israel sign. Wars and rumors of wars, famines and pestilences, earthquakes in divers places, and aberrant weather and widespread destruction.

Strong Delusion

Those who refuse GOD'S TRUTH would be given a strong delusion. GOD's Wrath is on those **who hold the truth in unrighteousness.** In the past hundred years, billions of people have bought into the other gospel of Marxism in one way or another. We are gravitating to the idols of evolution, human potential, self-esteem, welfare, government entitlements, **nanny state**, etc. Socialists and progressives are modern Marxists.

The Devil conquers by deceit and seduction of money and sex. There is a foolhardy denial of THE CREATOR. Our leaders are either dupes, degenerates or traitors used to degrade and enslave humanity using social engineering, diversity or sexual harassment training. Gentiles are considered stupid, dupes, gullible, feckless.

Luciferian Endgame

The ongoing struggle in the Middle East is cause for great concern to all the nations of the world. The jihadists of radical Islam are bent on destroying the state of Israel and the Great Satan (The United States). Hamas and Hezbollah are in fact at war with Israel and

are ramping up for another attack. Al-Qaeda will join forces with Hezbollah and Hamas to attack their sworn enemy, Israel. The prophecies found in The Bible are 100 percent accurate and reflect a GOD who knows the future because he is outside our space-time continuum.

The Fatima apparition changed the worldview of thousands of people in an instant and could very well be the harbinger of worldwide deception. Those who were in the field that day, who saw the miracle of the sun, for the most part became believers that the apparition was of Mary. I believe this was a deception. There are supernatural events currently taking place on a global scale. It seems the existence of UFOs and alien abductions are supernatural events that are orchestrated by fallen angels/Satanic forces. Prophecies written over twenty-six hundred years ago describe a time in history where a confederacy of nations will come up against Israel described as, a land of unwalled villages. Israel will respond to this attack by using its nuclear arsenal. Shortly after the war between Israel and the jihadists, great supernatural events will manifest on the earth.

There may be holographic imagery depicting the miracles of The Bible and other faiths. There will be a great falling away with most people believing the lie. Fallen angels disguised as aliens will manifest and lay claims to the creation of the human species and execution of the miracles that have happened on earth. UFO sightings, the Fatima apparitions, Mothman prophecies, crop circles, and the abduction phenomenon have occurred. The endgame of this global ruler is to be worshipped as god. Unless those days are shortened, no flesh would survive. The alien agenda will be revealed soon. Governments have been in collusion with the aliens trading access to our population for the aliens' advanced technology.

Aliens

Rebuke the spirits in THE NAME AND BLOOD OF JESUS CHRIST. This phenomenon cuts across all societal, economic, political, geographic, educational, religious, ethnic, racial, and intellectual lines. The message is usually an anti-Judeo-Christian message: JESUS is not who we think he is, they are our creators and of all life; they started our religions, were the gods that our ancestors worshipped and The Bible is not the inherent WORD OF GOD. They try to accomplish this through brainwashing methods, seduction of being special, paranormal abilities, and prophetic message that doesn't come true. False pregnancies happen to women. We are dealing with fallen angels. Many scientists are have allegiance to higher masters. Their agenda is obtaining life and alien/human hybrids that could pass as a human.

The breeding program is vigorous and extremely important. They are very interested in emotions and the soul, the inner energy of humans. If the truth was revealed, it would have a devastating impact on scientists and many government officials. Much of what science knows would be wrong. They are from the spirit world. Is the government holding back because of trading technology, greed, control or fear of panic? At some point in time, they will reveal themselves. Is there a connection between Near Death Experiences, out-of-body or unexplained aerial phenomena? The beings are cunning and correspond telepathically. There is occult activity, cattle and even human mutilations, crop circles and alien abduction phenomena. UFO sightings are on the increase. Aliens are messengers of deception.

OTHER

Education

There is an aggressive movement to devalue the notion of national sovereignty and teach American children to view themselves as global citizens by using the strategies of political power and social pressure to transform the future. The schools today are atheistic in many respects. It is taboo to air your Christian views in public schools where writing about JESUS as a historical person is considered absolutely illegal. Educational system is misguided with out-of-control schools. Public schools have sanitized their curriculum by removing all references to GOD or church.

In America, one child in four grows up not knowing how to read. Two-thirds of students who cannot read proficiently by the end of the fourth grade will end up in jail or on welfare. approximately half of unemployed youth ages 16 to 21 are functionally illiterate. They have virtually no prospect of obtaining good jobs. Children from low-income families are, on average, 2.5 grade levels behind in reading. Children who have not developed basic literacy skills by the time they enter school are 3 to 4 times more likely to drop out in later years. If a child who can't read grows up to become an adult who can't read, he or she is more than three times as likely to live in poverty. 85% of juvenile offenders have reading problems. Girls ages 16 to 19, who live at the poverty level or below and have below average reading skills, are six times more likely to have out-of-wedlock children than other girls their ages.

Traditions

What Christian and other traditions are you following? Research the origin to see if it is Christian. Christmas as generally celebrated today is one of many carry-overs from Roman Catholicism that survived the Reformation. Statues of Isis and Horus were renamed Mary and JESUS. The Saturnalia (Festival of Saturn in celebration of the winter solstice) was replaced by Christmas celebration.

Weather

Warnings: Matt. 24 - Luke 21 - Mark 13. GOD is able to use weather and other conditions on earth to come against the wickedness of man. Global warming summit - 12/09/09: massive blizzard - 130 large icebergs - giant iceberg 12 x 5 miles size. We are having bleak harvests due to droughts and floods with a reduction in animals.

Man-made and natural disasters generated worldwide economic losses of 222 billion dollars in 2010. Russia's heatwave left about 15,000 dead. Summer floods in China and Pakistan killed 6,225. There were 235 natural disasters claiming the lives of more than 260,000 and affecting 256 million more.

What is happening with the sun and the moon? Why is it that birds are dropping out of the air dead, and why have fish numbering into the millions suddenly died with explanation? Why are there sinkholes of gigantic proportions appearing all over the earth,

and what is happening with volcanic eruptions in Japan, Italy and Iceland? What about the UFO seen over the Temple Mount? The air, water and food are becoming toxic. 87% of the bee population has been killed off. The world's food production will be cut drastically.

OVERALL

People can't tell the difference between right and wrong thinking there is nothing that is absolute. They are outraged by killing of animals but kill their own children in their mothers' wombs. The Church is more concerned with bake sales than with deception; they are poised at a critical juncture in time and are unaware. The youth are confused and titillated with lascivious images; they have lost their innocence and have received hopelessness and death. Nations are killing each other. Plagues and new diseases take lives of many leaving orphans. Life has been taken out of the Church by being infiltrated by wolves in sheep's' clothing using money, sex and power. There is hopelessness and death, confusion and anarchy, disease and intolerance. The Church is fragmented, subverted and weakened by plants of the enemy.

Air contaminated or altered with chem-trails; food modified as GMO and nutrients taken out; control of pharmaceutical industry making us dependent on harmful chemicals for health; government out of control spending and taxing America out of existence; NWO implementing the need for reduction of six and half billion population; UN and others pushing for global world government; on verge of global collapse of economy; HAARP modifying weather and creating earthquakes.

Electronics making us see things that are not there; implanting thoughts that are not our own; non-human entities in society: Reptilians, Grays, UFO's, Orbs, Haunts and Caverns; human entities in society: Satan's Seed, Hybrids (half fallen angel and half man), abductions and implants; aliens: fallen angels, watchers and demons; clones and chimeras; biological chemical energy combined with electrical mechanical energy; and artificial intelligence (Gen. 3:15 & 6:4; Deut. 2:10-37 & 9:2; Num. 13:33 & 14:6-9; 1 Sam. 17:4; Jos. 11:21-22 & 21:11; Jud. 1:20; Dan. 2:43 & 8:10; Isa. 13:3-5; Matt. 24:15 & 24:37-39; Luke 21:26, 2 Thes. 2:3 & 2:11; 1 Pet. 3:18-19; 2 Pet. 2:4-9; Jude 6-7 and Rev. 12-13).

EPILOGUE

This is a covert war against humanity. Thought and communication are monopolized. Rich and powerful forces have been subverting the human race for at least 300 years. Our leaders are complicit in our enslavement. The people selected to advance often are traitors, criminals and perverts at worst or opportunists and dupes at best. The enemy's front lines are family, race, religion and nation. Millions are learning this horrible reality. The satanic cartel goal is to degrade and enslave humanity, mentally and spiritually if not physically. Culturally and spiritually we are impoverished and enchained. Universities are engaged in social engineering to deny GOD.

REFERENCES

There are many sources for this information that come from Christian publications: books, magazines, newsletters and other. I recommend the following if you want to find out what is happening to the world:

1. The Alien Interviews - Conversations With People Who Experienced Ufo Contacts and Politics Prophecy & The Supernatural - The Coming Great Deception And The Luciferian Endgame by I.a. Marzulli

2. Cruel Hoax - Feminism & The New World Order, Illuminati - The Cult That Hijacked The World and Illuminati 2 - Deceit And Seduction by Henry Makow
3. The Coming Oil Storm by Ron Rhodes

SECTION 3 - WRESTLE, BIND, LOOSE, AND COMMAND

CONTENTS

1. COMMENTS

- 1. Eph. 6:12
 - 1. Application
 - 2. Verbatim
- 3. Personal
- 2. Eph. 6:10-18
- 1. The Whole Armor Of GOD
- 3. Isa. 45:11
- 4. Matt. 10:7-8
- 5. Matt. 18:18
- 6. Mark 16:17
- 7. Luke 10:19
- 8. Power
- 2. SCRIPTURE
- **3. SCRIPTURE KEYS**
- 4. OVERALL PRAYER
- 5. OVERALL COMMAND
- 6. OVERALL WARFARE
- 7. DECLARATION

COMMENTS

Ephesians 6:12

I have been using Eph. 6:12 to bind the forces listed therein. This is alright, but it is not what the verse says to wrestle. Just recently THE LORD showed me wrestle in the verse and I started to use it that way. I have seen some amazing things happen as I teach other Christians how to use the verse. Use The King James Bible literally to apply the verse to spiritual warfare.

I have been doing this warfare with those who have asked me to pray for their needs. It has been amazing what they have seen or sensed happened in the spirit world. The Kingdom Of Evil does not like what we are doing. I sensed that the whole KINGDOM OF GOD was involved. Others have seen gross darkness, angels wrestling, spirits becoming smaller and other things. I believe that this is very powerful and I would like to see Christianity applying this spiritual principal.

Satan is commander-in-chief of The Kingdom Of Evil. Under him is one-third of innumerable fallen angels. There are billions of demons under the angels. The angels are the officers and the demons are the enlisted men. The forces listed in the verse are powerful fallen angels in the second heaven with Satan. They are telling the demons in the first heaven what to do. We wrestle against these rulers in the second heaven not against human beings and their demons.

Application: First, read the verse verbatim as it is written. **Second,** use the word **I** (for you) rather than the word we. However, if you are in a group, use the word we.

When you are using the word I, you are customizing the verse for your personal warfare. Then tell GOD what you are wrestling against in your life.

Verbatim: For we (or I) wrestle not against flesh and blood, but against principalities, against powers, against the rulers of the darkness of this world, against spiritual wickedness in high places.

Personal: For I wrestle (contend and strive, combat and engage, move and force) against principalities, powers, the rulers of the darkness of this world, spiritual wickedness in high places.

Eph. 6:10-18 The Whole Armor Of GOD

Strong in THE POWER OF THE LORD, having done all to withstand and stand, loins girt about with truth, having on the breastplate of righteousness, feet shod with the gospel of peace, above all taking the shield of faith, quench all the fiery darts, take the helmet of salvation and the sword of THE SPIRIT, praying always with all prayer, watching with all supplication in THE SPIRIT with all perseverance and supplication.

Isa. 45:11

What is amazing is that GOD said CONCERNING THE WORK OF MY HANDS COMMAND YE ME. (WORK - act, deed, doing; HANDS - open, power, means, direction; COMMAND - precept, appoint, commandment, send a messenger, send with commander, put/set in order, give a charge/command) I am amazed that GOD would allow us to order THE WORK OF GOD'S HANDS. This is very powerful because GOD is all powerful (omnipotent).

Matthew 10:7-8

We are to heal the sick, cleanse the lepers, raise the dead and cast out devils.

Matthew 18:18

We are to **bind and loose on earth what is bound and loosed in Heaven.** We bind and loose, and restrain and destroy.

Mark 16:17

We will **cast out devils** in THE NAME OF JESUS CHRIST and **speak with new tongues** by THE HOLY SPIRIT.

Luke 10:19

I have been using Luke 10:19 to **bind and loose all the power of the enemy** which is **The Kingdom Of Evil.**

Power

I have combined those verses in the Declaration for power.

SCRIPTURE

Isa. 45:11 thus saith the lord, the holy one of Israel, and his maker, ask me of things to come concerning my sons, and <u>concerning the work of my hands command ye me</u>. (command)

Matt. 10:7-8 and as ye go, preach, saying, <u>the kingdom of heaven is at hand. Heal the sick</u>, <u>cleanse the lepers</u>, <u>raise the dead</u>, <u>cast out devils</u>: freely ye have received, freely give (heal - cleanse - raise - cast).

Matt. 18:18 verily I say unto you, whatsoever ye shall <u>bind</u> (bonds, fasten, tie, <u>restrain</u>) on earth shall be <u>bound</u> in heaven: and whatsoever ye shall <u>loose</u> (break, <u>destroy</u>) on earth shall be <u>loosed</u> in heaven [bind (restrain) - loose (destroy)].

Mark 16:17 and these signs shall follow them that believe; in my name shall they cast out devils; they shall speak with new tongues (signs - cast - speak).

Luke 10:19 <u>behold, I give unto you power</u> (delegated authority) <u>to tread on serpents and</u> <u>scorpions</u> (demonic angels and spirits) <u>and over all the power of the enemy</u> (the kingdom of evil) <u>and nothing shall by any means hurt you</u>. (power - tread - nothing).

Eph. 6:12 for we <u>wrestle</u> (<u>contend and strive</u>, <u>engage and combat</u>, <u>move and force</u>) not against flesh and blood, but against <u>principalities</u>, against <u>powers</u>, against the <u>rulers of the</u> <u>darkness of this world</u>, against <u>spiritual wickedness in high places</u> (wrestle)

SCRIPTURE KEYS <u>WRESTLE - BIND - LOOSE - COMMAND</u> <u>HEAL - CLEANSE - RAISE - CAST</u> <u>SIGNS - CAST - SPEAK</u> <u>POWER - TREAD - NOTHING</u>

OVERALL PRAYER

Almighty god, please forgive us for omission - commission, known - unknown, deliberate - inadvertent sins by the blood of Jesus Christ. We forgive our enemies, pray for their salvation, and break curses placed on us. We thank god for power and authority over the enemy: satan and his kingdom. We are strong in the lord, and the power of his might. We cover us with the blood of Jesus Christ. We make a blood covenant with the father, son and holy spirit. We ask god to send our guardian angels, and an army of angels for warfare. Where god uses all and shall in the Bible, we agree and declare in our lives. We use overall prayer as a preface for other prayers. We pray the holy Bible and ask in the name of Jesus Christ: Lord, Master and Savior. Amen! So be it!

OVERALL COMMAND

We wrestle against the kingdom of evil, all the power of the enemy, principalities, powers, rulers of darkness of this world, and spiritual wickedness in high places. We use the power of god given to believers. We take authority over the kingdom of evil. We bind and subdue satan's empire. We enter into spiritual warfare, and assault the kingdom of darkness. We bind the forces of evil, and destroy the kingdom of evil. We send armies of warring angels to attack. We use every verse in the holy Bible that wars against the demonic forces. We use overall command as a preface for other commands.

OVERALL WARFARE

<u>Concerning the work of my hands command ye me.</u> We exercise authority over the work of god's hands. We bind and loose on earth what is bound and loosed in heaven. We command the devil's forces to destroy themselves. By the blood of Jesus Christ, we take dominion over satan. We put on the whole armor of god. We close doorways to demons. We come against the kingdom of evil. We use the word of god, written and spoken, against the forces of evil. We are the army of the lord. We exercise dominion over nations and kingdoms. We use our tactics and weapons of war against the enemy. We return curses and weapons formed against us. We use overall warfare as a preface for other warfare.

DECLARATION

For we wrestle (contend and strive, engage and combat, move and force) against the kingdom of evil, all the power of the enemy, principalities, powers, the rulers of the darkness of this world, spiritual wickedness in high places.

We have truth, righteousness, gospel of peace, faith, salvation, sword and perseverance. We are strong, withstand, stand, quench darts, praying, watching and supplication.

We restrain and destroy on earth what is restrained and destroyed in heaven. We cast out devils in the name of Jesus Christ and speak with new tongues by the holy spirit. We ask god of things to come concerning his sons and daughters. We exercise authority over the work of god's hands.

We wrestle, bind, loose and command what affects our lives, ministries and professions: evil forces of satan and fallen angels over new age, occult, witchcraft and satanism; sexual, curses and infirmities; Christian persecution and warfare; false doctrines and religions declaration.

For we wrestle (contend and strive, engage and combat, move and force) against the kingdom of evil, all the power of the enemy, principalities, powers, the rulers of the darkness of this world, spiritual wickedness in high places.

We have truth, righteousness, gospel of peace, faith, salvation, sword and perseverance. We are strong, withstand, stand, quench darts, praying, watching and supplication. We restrain and destroy on earth what is restrained and destroyed in heaven. We cast out devils in the name of Jesus Christ and speak with new tongues by the holy spirit. We ask god of things to come concerning his sons and daughters. We exercise authority over the work of god's hands.

We wrestle, bind, loose and command what affects our lives, ministries and professions: evil forces of satan and fallen angels over new age, occult, witchcraft and satanism; sexual, curses and infirmities; Christian persecution and warfare; and false doctrines and religions.

SECTION 4 - ONE WORLD ORDER (Where is this world heading?)

CONTENTS

- 1. OVERVIEW
- 2. END TIMES
- 3. FAMINE NOW
- 4. THE FOUR HORSEMEN OF THE APOCALYPSE
- 5. TIME IS SHORT
- 6. BATTLE CRY
- 7. WARNING
- 8. END OF THE AGE SIGNS
- 9. LAST SIGNS
- 10. .SIGNS OF THE TERMINAL GENERATION
- 11. THE GREAT AND FINAL APOSTASY
- 12. DECEPTION AND FALSE TEACHING
- 13. CONDITIONS IN CHURCHES
- 14. JEZEBEL VS. ELIJAH
- 15. WARRING AGAINST FORCES OF EVIL
- 16. PROPHECIES, DREAMS & VISIONS FOR AMERICA AND THE WORLD
- 17. WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD FOR AMERICA?
- 18. WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD FOR CHRISTIANS?
- 19. THE LIBERAL GAME PLAN
- 20. POLITICS
- 21. TEN TRUTHS THAT MUST BE TOLD
- 22. CHRISTIAN MEDIA
- 23. ENDGAME

OVERVIEW

THE JUDGMENT OF GOD is on America and has been since 1962 when America began to take GOD out of public life. America is deliberately destroying itself to bring it into the One-World Order. The North American Union is scheduled for 2010; One-World Order - 2012. We are being destroyed without by GOD and within by the government and others with their AntiChrist agendas. It has been said, **Look up, your salvation draweth near**.

Many things will happen around the world to bring The One-World Government into existence. It will affect the lives of everyone, especially Christians. Observe what is happening today. Compare the worldly events to THE HOLY WORD OF GOD about the end times. Study The Bible, King James Version, in Book of Revelations and other biblical books for the prophecies of the end times.

The ultimate goal of Satan is to be worshiped by the world. His master plan will culminate in him being worshipped as god. There will be a One-World Religion brought

about by the AntiChrist and controlled by the False Prophet. Satan is now worshipped in satanic churches in every major city in the United States.

The ultimate goal of the elite is to rule the world, destroy Christianity, and establish a world leader, the philosopher king. They are going to destroy the value of our currency, devastate our economy, and impoverish the American people so they can control them. The quest is world domination and enslavement of the people.

Christianity is being destroyed by persecution, world religions, hatred, Church apostasy, counterfeit Bibles and other satanic devices. Major religions are vying with each other for control. Religions are fighting against each other and especially against true Christianity that does not accept other religions. This can mean persecution or martyrdom. The main enemy is Christianity. People will do what they can to destroy Christianity and kill Christians but there always will be a remnant protected by GOD.

GOD is preparing international events for the triumph and reign of HIS SON, JESUS CHRIST, in the end times. GOD's purposes are not yet complete. Trouble and turmoil will come on this earth as Satan attempts a last-ditch but futile effort to prevent the return of our BLESSED LORD. This is an age of uncertainty, upheaval and loss of control over our daily lives. The battle is being raged everyday; society is experiencing unrest. The earth is rapidly decaying and seems to literally be a hell. The world grows more godless and secularized.

There will be a One-World Commerce controlled by a small group of people. There will be no private property for the common people. The One-World Business will have some organizations that control vast areas of the world finances. There won't be free enterprise and competition.

The One-World Health System will control mental and physical. There won't be a natural alternative health system. The pharmaceutical business will eliminate the vitamin, mineral and herbal businesses.

We are being destroyed by abortion, homosexuality and sexual sin; overall evil; Supreme Court and other activist courts; weather; terrorism; obsessions; liberal politicians and crooked politics; Satan's Kingdom, New Age, cults, occultism, witchcraft and Satanism; evolution and humanism; love of money and billionaires wanting total control of world.

END TIMES

Apostate Church; Christian Hatred and Detention Camps; Executions and Christians Beheaded; Mark Of The Beast and other Persecutions.

Famine, Pestilence, Disease And Thirst; Control of Food, Life and Death; Panic, Food Riots, Chaos, Rioting and Terror; Savage Wars, Bloodshed, Carnage and Hunger; World Stock Market And Economy Collapses; Food Rationed; Contrived Food Crises; Media Brainwashing; Lust After Power; Total Global Domination And Control; Economic Stress; Production Shortages; Induced Poverty; Mob Psychology; New World Order, New Age Utopia, Socialism, Communitarianism and Marxism; Universal Numbering System; World War III; Universal Devastation; Nuclear, Laser, Chemical, Taser, Nanotechnology and Biological Weapons; Cannibalism; Food Is Power; Slavery; Perilous Times; Political And Social Turmoil; Restructured America and Police State; Collapse Of Civilization; Violence and other Catastrophes.

FAMINE NOW

Surplus U.S. food supplies dry up. Stockpiles of butter, non-fat dry milk, upland cotton and other items have been emptied. Mechanized, chemically intensive farming has compromised soils, water systems and other natural infrastructure. Food production is not sustainable. Add droughts across the globe, floods in U.S. bread basket, constant civil wars, decreasing rainfall, over pumping of underground aquifers and continuing losses in topsoil lead to collapse in world food supply. There is global loss of farmland to erosion, over grazing, spread of development which costs 2 acres of farmland for each birth or immigrant. Future farmers will need more water than the world has available. **There will be famine and political instability on a world-wide scale.**

Drought in Australia has wiped out crops. Food riots are erupting around the world. **GOD** is breaking up the food chain with natural disasters. Rains and tornados have hit Midwest causing terrible loss of life and property in America's Bread Basket. Ethanol plants are using much of the corn. Stockpiles of wheat are below emergency levels and there is wheat rust blight.

THE FOUR HORSEMEN OF THE APOCALYPSE

The first horseman rides a white horse, holds a bow, is given a crown and is bent on conquest. This rider is commonly interpreted to be the AntiChrist, who will conquer or kill those who oppose him (Rev. 6:2). The second horseman rides a fiery red horse symbolizing War. He has a huge sword, takes peace from the earth and represents terrible warfare which will break out in the end times (Rev. 6:4). The third horseman rides a black horse and holds a pair of scales in his hand. He represents Great Famine, Destruction Of The World's Crops and Wildlife which result in Economic Collapse (Rev. 6:5). The fourth horseman named Death rides the pale horse and exacerbates Warfare, Disease And Famine (Rev. 6:8). See Rev. 14:20, 19:11, 19 & 21.

TIME IS SHORT

I believe that GOD told me we are in the last hours of the last days of the end times. You could say that it is three minutes before midnight. I believe that I am young enough, at seventy-five years old, to see Revelation and related portions of THE BIBLE come to pass. If you study what is happening in the world physically and spiritually, you will see evil rapidly overcoming the world. Revelation and The Bible prophecies will come to pass; only GOD knows when He will remove the restrainer to the AntiChrist.

Presently there are about 200,000 to 300,000 Christians martyred each year with hundreds of millions persecuted. Persecution of Christians in America will steadily grow until the AntiChrist. The AntiChrist will cause martyrdom of Christians around the world unless GOD protects them. **I believe that Christians will go through the Tribulation**

(first 3 1/2 years) but we will be protected from THE WRATH OF GOD in The Great Tribulation (last 3 1/2 years).

America is no longer a Christian nation. America is now a pagan nation. The courts and government are doing what they can to remove CHRIST and GOD out of public life. They are also working on churches and ministries to limit Christianity.

It would appear that most of the Church is blind to what is happening to THE BODY OF CHRIST. Let them alone: they be blind leaders of the blind. And if the blind lead the blind both shall fall into the ditch (Matt. 15:14). Believers can be deceived that do not truly love the truth or believe The Holy Bible. Much of The Church has been deceived. Part of Rev. 12:9 states The Devil and Satan, which deceiveth the whole world.

Do churches cast-out demons and, teach about the devices of Satan and the Kingdom of Evil? The greatest need in The Church today is deliverance. JESUS CHRIST came to preach The Gospel, heal the sick and cast out demons. This is the pattern we should follow.

You need to enter into spiritual warfare daily. It could be that GOD will delay the AntiChrist and Tribulation by your spiritual warfare. You can pray that GOD will protect Christians as He brings judgment. THE JUDGMENT OF GOD is on America and has been since the courts started taking GOD out of public life in 1962.

GOD told Earline and me years ago to teach people around the world how to do deliverance. I believe that deliverance is slowly growing around the world based on the reports that I get. BE A WARRIOR OF CHRIST! GOD BLESS YOU!

BATTLE CRY

Legalization of abortion and sodomy brings breakdown of cultural protections of modesty, respect for authority, family unity, honesty and decency in the media, and diligence in labor. Europe has become more and more resistant to The Gospel. To teach the biblical account of creation has been outlawed for several decades. Seduction of Christianity is almost complete. Many cultures are threatened by even the presence of another religion, especially Christianity.

WARNING

GOD is going to shake everything that can be shaken; judgment begins in THE HOUSE OF THE LORD. Christians in the Western World have been playing church and have gotten lazy. GOD is extremely angry with the churches in America for refusing to stand up, get involved in the government and not speaking out against ungodly things being done in America.

GOD is allowing Satan to release very powerful spirits of sexual immorality into the churches to tempt GOD's people. The churches are going to become worse than the world in the area of sexual immorality and divorce. Divorce and sexual immorality is widely accepted in most churches. GOD is taking His hand off protection of His People.

Pastors refuse to allow their people to go to another church to hear a guest speaker because they are afraid of losing them to that church and losing their income from their church. There is incredible competition among churches and pastors. In many cases, the pastors of big churches look down on pastors of little churches and despise them. Christians would rather deal with a non-Christian than a Christian; we have entered the season of purification of The Church.

END OF THE AGE SIGNS

There will be wars and rumors of war, famine, pestilence and earthquakes in various places. False prophets will arise and deceive many. These are the beginnings of sorrows.

1. **First - War:** One-fourth of the earth is involved in conflict.

2. Second - Famine: Famine is imminent. Mildew is wiping out whole fields of wheat and is said to be a worse **pandemic** than bird flu. Bees that pollinate our crops are disappearing at an alarming rate. Drought has hit twenty-five percent of nation and is evident world-wide. Heat waves hitting Europe with record temperatures are killing people and devastating crops. Water is being rationed even in the United States.

3. **Third - Pestilence:** Famine brings pestilence (disease). New diseases such as AIDS, bird flu and legionnaire's disease; old diseases such as bubonic plague, yellow and spotted fever, and polio and small pox are a threat to humanity.

4. **Fourth - Weather:** An earthquake caused tsunami that killed thousands. Volcanoes are erupting, ice caps are melting and meteors are headed our way. Fires, floods, hurricanes and tornadoes have devastated much of this nation. Whole cities and towns have been destroyed.

5. **Controlled News:** The media does not report THE JUDGMENT OF GOD on America and the world. The signs of GOD's judgment are on the earth.

LAST SIGNS

The New Testament is filled with predictions of a last-days falling away. False prophets will rise and lead many astray. Wolves will come in sheep's clothing bringing powerful deceptions to **deceive**, if **possible**, even the elect of God. Wickedness will abound, causing once-hot believers to lose their first love. With the flood of iniquity to come, the love of many will grow cold. The Devil and enemies out of Hell will gather together against Christianity. We'll be afflicted and tossed with tempest.

Horrifying school shootings, rise of militant homosexuality, terrorist acts taking place throughout world, things waxing worse, rise in iniquities, great calamities, vicious world religions, failing economy, roaring and raging of the heathen, terrorist threats, and wars and rumors of wars. Spirits of prosperity, ease, pleasure, greed, false security and apostasy affecting Christianity.

Secular powers trying to outlaw Christianity, fast-growing anti-Christ movements boasting they'll rule the world and destroy JESUS' followers, and saying cast away all moral hindrances and landmarks of the past.

Secularism wiping out evangelical church in Europe, Islam being the fastest growing religion in world, homosexuals hijacking entire denominations, CHRIST's CHURCH growing so weak it no longer has any impact on society, compromised mainline churches, soft-pedaled gospel of post-modern churches, lovers of pleasure more than lovers of GOD, having a form of religion with no power, despising The Gospel, tearing down moral landmarks, changing GOD's INFALLIBLE WORD to suit the times and false religions growing in great numbers.

The United States is experiencing the worst housing crisis since the Great Depression. Our largest, most trusted banking institutions are having to be bailed out by Arab and Chinese money. The sinking economy has become the number one concern, even greater than the Iraq war or the threat of terrorism. No one can agree on what to do about the worsening economy, the war and the health care crisis.

College campuses are drowning in alcohol, with a growing epidemic of binge drinking. High school students smoke pot and drink heavily; many have already developed severe addictions. Crystal meth, the new cheap-and-easy drug, is sweeping cities and small towns, with an entire generation falling into its hellish grip. School shootings have mounted in recent years. Young people have been taken captive and held hostage by the Devil. The slave trade of pornography, homosexuality, human trafficking, abortion and sexual perversion is growing, and is accepted and promoted by the culture. The moral fabric of the nation is fragile as corruption of sin becomes greater.

People are starving to death in the Congo. Ethnic cleansing in Sudan has displaced over 300,000 men, women and children. Kenya is being terrorized by brutal violence, with multitudes being slaughtered in cities and villages. Chat is enduring a civil war. Nigeria is falling into societal chaos. The Middle East continues to boil in a cauldron of terror and fear.

The European Union is making plans to install a super president who will have unprecedented powers and raise a military force. This will set the stage of the AntiChrist. Evil men are growing more vile and wicked with economic crises continuing to mount. Believers are faced with despair, crises, weighted down, at breaking point, trembling with anxiety and hearts failing with fear.

SIGNS OF THE TERMINAL GENERATION

- 1. An unprecedented explosion of knowledge.
- 2. The invention and threat of nuclear warfare.
- 3. Israel re-born May 15, 1948.
- 4. Temple to be rebuilt. Sanhedrin reorganized on Jan. 12, 2005 with the temple as their first priority.
- 5. Mockers of Christianity.
- 6. Jews of various ancestries return to Israel.
- 7. Jerusalem not governed by the gentile nations Six Day War 1967.

8. International news media through satellite transmissions enables The Gospel to be preached to every nation. In the near future, it will be used to transmit the two witnesses of JESUS, lying dead on the streets of Jerusalem, at the end of time, in one hour.

9. Deception - Inability to distinguish the difference between good and evil.

10. The Abomination of Desolation.

11. Floods, Famines, Pestilences, Earthquakes and Signs in The Heavens.

12. As it was in the days of Noah, so it shall be with the Second Coming of THE SON OF MAN.

THE GREAT AND FINAL APOSTASY

Apostasy is rejection of truth once believed and proclaimed when GOD's people abandon the truth that saved them and use man-made methods bent on backsliding. It is outright blasphemy. **The new gospel dismisses the divinity of CHRIST, the reality of Hell and Judgment, biblical standards of purity and morality, to defame the name of CHRIST, to call GOD "she" and to say The Church has no HEAVENLY FATHER.** It is a wave of total apostasy; these half-truths are spreading over the globe. There is total silence about the reality of Hell and an after-death judgment. A diluted gospel is no gospel at all; it is absolutely treacherous. The whole counsel of GOD is not preached.

Let no man deceive you by any means: for that day shall not come, <u>except there</u> <u>come a falling away first</u>, (apostasy) and that man of sin be revealed, the son of perdition (2 Thes. 2:3 - son of doom). Ezekiel 16 speaks about the apostate church. Old Testament truths have a dual application for both then and now. Idols and false gods are worshiped. There is utter pride and terrible arrogance. The apostate preachers are leading their people to Hell and they are headed for Hell. GOD is sending awesome supernatural judgments on the earth. There will be a great increase of doctrinal error which will infiltrate The Church.

DECEPTION AND FALSE TEACHING

GOD will send strong delusion on those who rebel against Him. Apostle Paul presented grave warnings about deception and false teaching leading believers astray in the last days. The spirit of this age is imposing seductive false doctrines and destructive theological errors upon multitudes. These are powerful lies in our times. There are galeforce winds of deception gaining strength in this period of prophetic history. Some mature believers are falling prey to various false doctrines, and dangerous theological fads and new revelations. Satan has uncanny power to seduce even seasoned Christians away from the authenticity of JESUS CHRIST and the authority of GOD'S WORD. They have left the truth of JESUS CHRIST, THE HOLY SPIRIT and The Bible; disaster follows.

CONDITIONS IN CHURCHES

(Be In Health Global)

It is necessary to speak, exhort and rebuke with authority. Christians are the laughingstock of the world. The Church is lazy and deluded. The WORD OF GOD needs to be re-established in THE HOUSE OF GOD. The Church is afraid of evil pretending that evil does not exist; we are victims. There seems to be this mentality: evil out of sight

- evil out of mind. The Church and the world are close together. There are three words that have been taken out of modern Christianity: if, then and but.

The Church is offering a gospel without responsibility for sin. Some teaching is psychological such as the teaching that you can live like the Devil and go to Heaven. There are those that teach eternal security being immune to the consequence of sin but it is heresy.

The nation and people of GOD took the blessing and turned it into idolatry by the worship of paganistic cultures, divinations, ideologies, religions and philosophies. False prophets are diviners, fortune-tellers. The Church is filled with seed-faith giving and name-it-claim-it (slot-machine mentality).

You can not be in leadership unless you are prosperous, have initials behind your name, licensed by that denomination or have a degree in certain seminaries; many of these leaders fall. Pride, fullness of bread and abundance of idleness are downfalls. Competition within the body of CHRIST is no different than in the corporate world. If discipline was executed by church leadership, we would have less problems.

JEZEBEL VS. ELIJAH

Many hate truth. Many of today's prophets are man's prophets. Many pastors and flocks would rather hear words that flatter and soothe. Many have yielded to temptations of pride of life and lusts of flesh. Some pastors have the Jezebel spirit and through it they seek to control congregations. They make merchandise of you. GOD will hold man accountable for abdicating authority to the woman.

Jezebel seeks to control pastors, prophets and churches. Jezebel fights against GOD's work by infiltrating and attempting to destroy churches from within. Much of government and nation is completely controlled by Jezebel spirit. Numerous leaders have fallen prey to Jezebel's seductions. Controlling and Jezebel spirits operate through witchcraft.

Many of our sovereign rights were gradually turned over to the U.N. along with military and weapons. A growing number of military bases in the USA are occupied largely by foreign troops. Military secrets were pedaled to the highest bidders. America is close to tribulation and military takeover. Public parks and other lands are secretly being given away to pay off national debts through executive orders. The New World order crowd is moving us swiftly towards world domination. What will happen to America parallels ancient Rome and Israel. America has thumbed her nose at holiness, truth and righteousness, and failed to protect the innocent through abortion. Persecution of Christians in this country and around the world has escalated to astounding proportions; America and Christians have turned a blind eye. We are dangerously close to the end of this age with the world headed for judgment. The church is lukewarm, compromised and blind with pride.

WARRING AGAINST FORCES OF EVIL

Evil with the scope and intensity of attacks on believers is escalating on every continent. There is the brutal reality of a clash of civilizations with hardening fault lines among the world's religions: Communism, Confucianism, Judaism, Islam, Hinduism, Buddhism and other dominate faith traditions which are on a collision course with each other and Christianity. Evil wears many masks. Among the worst are religious intolerance, persecution and discrimination especially against Christianity.

PROPHECIES, DREAMS & VISIONS FOR AMERICA AND THE WORLD

America will burn including villages, towns and cities. Missiles will have atomic warheads. Babylon (America) will be destroyed because of the wickedness and blasphemy. Powerful plagues, disasters, winds, storms, fires, heavy rains, floods, hurricanes, tornadoes and earthquakes have been / will be sent by GOD. He takes revenge against sin. The fall of America will be as fast as a star falls. America has gone away from the truth and the way of GOD. The sin of the great whore, America, has spread throughout the world.

There will be burning, killing, looting, rioting, and breakdown and lack of respect of law and order. A day of pain and terror is near; time is very short. There will be such great turmoil that only a few will escape. The days have been shortened because of all of the iniquities. The saints will suffer; many will die and flee, and some will live. People honor themselves rather than honor GOD.

The Church has compromised and left GOD. The churches are fraudulent (counterfeit, false). The Church has become a social club with activities that appeal to self. The Church has adultery, fornication, sodomy, divorces, abortions, and worshiping strange and foreign gods. Because of hypocrisy, The True Church has been blasphemed and brought disrespect on THE WORD OF GOD. America accepted Buddha, Devil Church, Sodomite Church, Mormon Church and all kinds of wickedness. The Pope will be given power over the Protestants.

The world will be facing terrible conditions and horrible indescribable darkness. The earth is defiled because they have transgressed the law, changed the ordinance and broken the everlasting covenant. Troubles will come on the earth. Dark days and days of sadness are coming soon.

The Book Of The Gentiles is almost complete. The Jewish Book Of Life will then be opened. Are you in The Book Of Life?

WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD FOR AMERICA?

As it was in Hitler's Germany, so it will soon be here in the United States. Wickedness engulfs our nation. The entire population of the world is under attack, with the support and approval of our own government. It has been said that members of the Skull and Bones Society worship Satan. We are in a spiritual war that is being fought on a cultural, ideological, and political battlefield. The two common goals are global government under the rule of one man, the AntiChrist, and a new world religion with one order, one government, one administrative body. We are in the final stages of the spiritual battle for mankind. Our national sovereignty is gradually being eroded. There is a plan to synthesize western capitalism with eastern communism. Wars, revolutions, assassinations, deception and murder are used to advance the agenda. Propaganda has been used to control the American people spiritually, economically, politically and socially. Foundations have been funding communist and socialist organizations, moving our educational system to the left, financing Alfred Kinsey, and promoting Marxism.

The purpose is to seize control of the political government of the United States. **The New World Order will cost money, words and blood.** The aims are against government, morals and religion, and will undermine our ancient institutions, civil and sacred. Children are indoctrinated in hedonism, paganism and disrespect for parental authority in public schools.

Witchcraft is the fastest growing religion in the United States. Millions of Americans participate in witchcraft, divining, sorcery, mediums, black arts, séances, astrology, Gnosticism, spirit guides, Masonry, New Age, Theosophy, Rosicrucianism, OTO, Satanism, Skull and Bones, Process Church, Christian Science and Kabala.

Worldwide damage to farmlands and crops from droughts and floods. Starvation is threatened on a global scale. Half of our honey bees are gone. Without grain, livestock and bees, a nation cannot survive. Our economy is faltering. We will experience the most severe famine in recorded history. Coupled with these is THE JUDGMENT OF GOD on America and the world for turning against GOD.

The neoconservatives (Trotskyites) goal is to rule the world, destroy Christianity and establish a world leader (the AntiChrist). The war on terrorism is designed to monitor the American people and establish a Machiavellian dictatorship in the United States. We are dealing with men who are knowingly or unknowingly subservient to The Prince Of This World. The pre-emptive attack on Syria and Iran will destabilize the Middle East and have a disastrous impact America. We are faced with the knowledge of occult wisdom, Masonic geometry and sacred numerology.

WHAT DOES THE FUTURE HOLD FOR CHRISTIANS?

As our nation moves toward a godless dictatorship, those who have spoken out will surely face persecution. Our government condones the persecution of Christians throughout the world. Those of us who oppose the New World Order will be marked for destruction. Our enemy is intent upon destroying traditional Judaism and Christianity. The court decisions will inevitably lead to the destruction of the Judeo-Christian religious foundation of our nation. We are forsaking our Christian heritage and changing from a Republic into a secular Democracy.

Exciting, difficult and frightening times lie ahead. Our job is to do our best, disseminate truth, educate others, and spread the Gospel. We are told to warn others of

what lies ahead. It has been said that men and women become accomplices to those evils they fail to oppose. There is no place to hide.

THE LIBERAL GAME PLAN

(Against Life And Liberty)

1. **Hate Crime Legislation:** a legal springboard to silence those who reject homosexual behavior and Muslimism (government mandated speech - churches intimidated - Canada - England - France - Germany - South Africa - Australia - India - anti-discrimination / harassment).

2. **The Fairness Doctrine:** would require radio stations to severely limit or drop Christian and conservative hosts.

3. **The Anti-Life Agenda:** Partial-Birth Abortion, Embryonic Stem-Cell Research, and Cloning (abortion legalized).

4. Immigration Reform: Amnesty For Illegal Aliens.

5. Tax Increases: confiscatory tax increases with new taxes on energy.

6. Judicial Nominations: slowing or stopping important judicial nominations.

7. Hillary Care: federal health care to cost one-seventh of economy.

8. **Religious Freedom:** IRS censorship of churches, Christians persecuted, elevate homosexual behavior over religious conviction, Judeo-Christian memorials, Pledge Of Allegiance, refusal to acknowledge GOD officially, purge religious books from prisons, Ten Commandments and others.

9. **Marriage And Family:** Challenging marriage, same sex-divorce, redefining family, coercing Church, evading law, silencing voters, indoctrinating children and attacking workplace.

10. **Sexual Orientation:** Heterosexuality, homosexuality, bisexuality, transgender or whatever a person perceives: cross-dressers, men who self-identify as women. women who self-identify as men, polygamy, group marriage, etc.

POLITICS

Politics is often dirty, filled with ungodly people, and riddled with corruption, moral compromise, scandal and dishonesty. We are fighting for freedom of religion, speech and Christian airwaves. We are fighting against tax dollars funding abortion, medical experiments creating life for the purpose of destroying it, government indoctrination of children in secular humanism, no GOD allowed in education, and moral decline. **The wicked shall be turned into Hell, and all the nations that forget GOD** (Psa. 9:17).

TEN TRUTHS THAT MUST BE TOLD

1. America's armed forces will never leave Iraq.

2. The United States will never be self-sufficient in energy resources even though it possesses enough oil, gas, coal and other resources to meet America's need for a thousand years.

3. Global warming, a hoax, is the newest Illuminate crusade but the objective of the Illuminists has nothing to do with climate changes.

4. Environmentalists now demand that trees and forests be cut down and dams be blown up.

5. Abortion will never be completely outlawed in the United States.

6. America will continue to fight "monsters" and "bogeymen" abroad in bloody wars that are never meant to be won.

7. The War on Drugs will never be won because the U.S. government is the biggest dope dealer in the world.

8. America will elect a Zionist Jew disloyal to America as its President.

9. The Illuminate intend for U.S.A. and Russia to be merged soon after the North American Union is completed in 2010.

10. Israel will use nuclear bombs to start World War III in the Middle East, insanely believing in the teachings of the cabalist rabbis that a Zionist Global Kingdom will ensue.

CHRISTIAN MEDIA

It has become undeniable that the tribulation storm is approaching America. Wicked weather, monetary instability, social unrest, food shortages, soaring fuel costs and ongoing military conflict are part of our daily existence.

There is a financial meltdown, and destruction of commercial order and economic vitality. The present regime only needs one severe national emergency to declare martial law, and cancel (or claim to postpone) the election. The Scripture points to a totalitarian seizure of power.

ENDGAME

Now learn a parable of the fig tree; When his branch is yet tender, and putteth forth leaves, ye know that summer is nigh: So likewise ye, when ye shall see all these things, know that it is near, even at the doors. Verily I say unto you, This generation shall not pass, till all these things be fulfilled (Matt. 24:32-34). The process will probably go from independent nations to ten regions of combined nations to the world without nations. We will go from America to the North American Union to the One-World Government to the End Of The Tribulation (beginning of The Millennium). The projected dates are: North American Union - 2010, One-World Government - 2012 and End Of The Tribulation - 2017 (allowing seven years for The Tribulation).

SECTION 5 - PRAYERS FOR SELF, FAMILY, NATION AND WORLD

OVERALL PRAYER

Almighty god, please forgive us for omission - commission, known - unknown, deliberate - inadvertent sins by the blood of Jesus Christ. We forgive our enemies, pray for their salvation, and break curses placed on us. We thank god for power and authority over the enemy: satan and his kingdom. We are strong in the lord, and the power of his might. We cover us with the blood of Jesus Christ. We make a blood covenant with the father, son and holy spirit. We ask god to send our guardian angels, and an army of angels for warfare. Where god uses all and shall in the Bible, we agree and declare in our lives. We use overall prayer as a preface for other prayers. We pray the holy Bible and ask in the name of Jesus Christ: lord, master and savior. Amen! So be it!

Prayer Against Terrorism

We come together in unity of THE HOLY SPIRIT with other Christians around the world against terrorism. We ask for the protection of **THE BLOOD AND NAME OF THE LORD JESUS CHRIST.** We pray according to The Holy Bible and Psalm 91 which is very powerful.

THE LORD'S PRAYER

Our FATHER which art in Heaven, Hallowed be thy name. Thy kingdom come, Thy will be done in earth, as it is in Heaven. Give us this day our daily bread. <u>AND FORGIVE US</u> <u>OUR DEBTS, AS WE FORGIVE OUR DEBTORS</u>. And lead us not into temptation, but deliver us from evil: For thine is the kingdom and the power, and the glory, for ever. (Matt. 6:9-13).

GENE'S PRAYERS Gene's Ministry

- 1. To be a spiritual and physical eunuch.
- 2. To be an intercessor.
- 3. To be sensitive to and led by THE HOLY SPIRIT.
- 4. That you would do great works through me.
- 5. That the long sword that you have given me will go through the world and destroy the enemies of GOD.
- 6. That through Byron's and Earline's deaths the thoughts of many hearts will be revealed.
- 7. That the ministry will increase.
- 8. To use my life and resources in the battle against Satan and his kingdom.
- 9. To do as much damage to the Kingdom of Satan as I can.
- 10. To have GOD set my ministry schedule.
- 11. To train an army for GOD and Christians to do deliverance and healing.
- 12. To break curses on the ministry.

Gene's Personal Life

1. For the needs of our family.

- 2. For the proper relationship with my relatives.
- 3. That I would be a Light for GOD in my community.
- 4. For every thing that pertains to me: home, farm, community, parish, city, state, nation and world.
- 5. For everyone that I have a relationship with.
- 6. For divine health: mental, physical, spiritual and material.
- 7. To have GOD set my personal schedule.
- 8. To break curses on my personal life.

Nathan, Marie, Nat, Natasha And Rachel

- 1. That they would follow the leadership of THE HOLY SPIRIT.
- 2. That they would have divine health: mental, physical, spiritual and material.
- 3. For Nathan for healing of the pinched nerve in his back and for him to be able to address the negative part of life.
- 4. For Marie for healing of her body and allergy to poison ivy.
- 5. For Nat for healing of his digestive system and for him to learn how to eat properly.
- 6. For Natasha that she will not try to control others.
- 7. For Analytical and Environmental Testing for a proper cash flow.
- 8. For deliverance for Nathan, Marie, Nat, Natasha and Rachel.
- 9. To break curses on Nathan, Marie, Nat, Natasha and Rachel.

For Other Families

- 1. For the Chauncey families: Beverly, Donald and Carolyn, Wilburn and Gwen, Saralene and their descendants.
- 2. For the Levy family relatives to come into a saving knowledge of JESUS CHRIST.
- 3. To break curses on Moody's and Hughes', Chauncey's and Wilson's, Levy's and Hendrey's, Hostetler's and Kalkan's.

Other People

- 1. For those who are involved in deliverance.
- 2. For everyone who has written us and has requested prayer from Earline and me.
- 3. For those that I have a relationship with in the ministry.
- 4. For people in foreign countries that I support: Bahamas, Canada, England, Ghana, India, Malawi, Nigeria, Philippines, Romania, Scotland and other countries.
- 5. For the packages mailed around the world that they would arrive safely at their destinations.
- 6. For the information that we have sent around the world that THE HOLY SPIRIT will use it to further the KINGDOM OF GOD.
- 7. For the Deliverance Manuals that have been distributed that THE HOLY SPIRIT would teach people how to do deliverance.
- 8. For everyone that Earline and I have prayed for.

- 9. For organizations and people that have requested a **Deliverance Manual**, are in the ministry of deliverance and healing, and we have supported financially and with our time. Those that are ministering to the persecuted Christians, trying to save children from abortions, leading us in fasting and prayer, and Messianic Jewish (Christian).
- 10. To break curses on the people that I am associated with.

GENE'S DAILY PRAYERS Prayer of Thanksgiving

Thank You for meeting every need out of your RICHES IN GLORY THROUGH JESUS CHRIST (Phil. 4:19). Thank You for every blessing known and unknown, and for showering down blessings so great that we can not receive them (Mal. 3:10). DEAR HEAVENLY AND GRACIOUS FATHER, thank You for divine health: mental, physical, spiritual and material. Thank You for the restoration of our bodies. Thank You for every provision.

Prayer at the Breakfast Table

We confess that this is the day that the LORD has made; We will rejoice and be glad in it (Psa. 118:24). For GOD has not given us a spirit of fear but of power, love and a sound mind (II Tim. 1:7). He that is in us is greater than he that is in the world (I John 4:4). If GOD be for us, who can be against us? (Rom. 8:31). You have given us <u>power over all the power of the enemy</u> and we intend to exercise it by the leadership of THE HOLY SPIRIT (Luke 10:19).

DEAR HEAVENLY AND GRACIOUS FATHER, thank You for a good day, for protecting us against powers, principalities, evil forces in this world and spiritual wickedness in high places. We apply THE BLOOD OF JESUS CHRIST over and bind Satan away from Nathan, Marie, Nat, Natasha and Rachel, Chapel on the Campus, Analytical And Environmental Testing, and everything that we have part in. Send your angels to minister unto us, place a ring of HOLY GHOST FIRE around us and cover us with Your Blood.

We pray for the United States of America and Israel, Christians and Jews, and churches that worship JESUS CHRIST in spirit and truth. We ask for courage, understanding, wisdom and strength. We pray especially for the leaders and ask a double portion for our families. We ask divine favor with You in accordance with THE HOLY WORD OF GOD, with each other and those we come into contact with today. We ask that You lead, guide, direct and protect us. Let us walk in your perfect will; we yield ourselves to you today. We thank You for our food, clothing and shelter, and for everything that You have done for us known and unknown. We ask you to bless this food to our bodies, purify and cleanse it so that our temples will be fit for THE HOLY SPIRIT to reside in. We ask GOD to circumcise our thoughts.

Prayer for the Day

We thank You for power and authority over the enemy, and the right to use THE NAME OF JESUS CHRIST. DEAR HEAVENLY AND GRACIOUS FATHER, we

ask you to forgive us of our sins, teach us and show us so that we will be pleasing in your sight. We pray for ourselves, Nathan, Marie, Nat, Natasha and Rachel, this day and the leadership of THE HOLY SPIRIT. We thank You for each other, this day and most of all for You. We pray for our relatives, friends, and Christian brothers and sisters. We pray for those who labor in the field of deliverance, for their families, churches and ministries that You would give them a triple-fold portion of courage, understanding, wisdom and strength.

We pray for THE ARMY OF THE LORD that it would grow strong and mighty, and be valiant and do exploits in THE NAME OF JESUS CHRIST. We pray that deliverance would come to the forefront of Christianity. We pray for the five-fold ministry, those that we have ministered to, and their families, churches and ministries that they would follow THE LORD. We pray for men and women everywhere that they would come into the saving knowledge of JESUS CHRIST. We pray Your Blessings on these.

Prayer in a Restaurant

DEAR HEAVENLY AND GRACIOUS FATHER, thank You for this food. Bless, purify and cleanse it so that we can be fit temples for THE HOLY SPIRIT to reside in. We break any curses on it and eat it with thanksgiving.

PRAYERS

Praise, Honor And Worship

BLESSING, GLORY, WISDOM, THANKSGIVING, HONOR, POWER, AND MIGHT, BE UNTO OUR GOD FOR EVER AND EVER. WE PRAISE, EXALT AND WORSHIP THE FATHER, SON, HOLY SPIRIT. We thank You for Your Divine Deliverance And Supernatural Work. We thank You for Your Love Towards Us even when we were in sin. We believe that JESUS CHRIST is the Great Conqueror of the devils of darkness.

Praise You that THE HOLY SPIRIT is bringing conviction to our loved ones of sin, and revealing JESUS CHRIST'S SACRIFICE to them. THANK YOU FATHER that You are dispatching warring angels to war for their souls. Praise You for sending workers in the fields across their pathway. We rejoice in their salvation, and believe that You are moving on their behalf.

General

For: National Repentance, Revival, Those in Authority, Good Government, Sanctity of Life, Marriage, Family, Education, Church, Israel, End-Time Restoration, National Security, Supremacy of CHRIST, Racial Reconciliation, Religious Freedom, Widows, Orphans and Peace. Maintaining Christian orthodoxy; restoring biblical world view; public display and observance of The Ten Commandments; fulfillment of Great Commandment and Commission; preserving traditional marriage; thwarting same-sex marriage and adoption; and exposure of gangs, terrorists cells and networks, and THE COMPLETE WORD OF GOD.

Against: Abortion, Terrorism, Secular Humanism, New Age, Occult, Immigration, Poverty, HIV and AIDS, Slavery, Sex and Drug Trafficking, War, Alcoholism, Drug Addiction, Pornography, Sex Addiction, Child Abuse, Murder and Crime. Homelessness and hunger in America; economic downturn; national debt and corporate corruption; loss of U.S. sovereignty, and everything of The Kingdom Of Satan.

How To Pray

(Increase Your Prayer Power Tenfold)

JESUS CHRIST said, Therefore pray THE LORD of the harvest to send out laborers into His harvest (Matt. 9:38). For kings, and for <u>all that are in authority</u>; that we may lead a quiet and peaceable life in <u>all godliness and honesty</u> (I Tim. 2:2). For the peace of Jerusalem: May they prosper who love you (Psa. 122:6).

HOLY, HOLY, HOLY IS THE LORD GOD ALMIGHTY. Pray in The Fear of THE LORD. Battle evil forces of darkness. There is a void of prayer training in most seminaries.

We pray for: the leaders of our country to be providentially guided in their decisions. Our needs: salvation of family members, finances, healing and other needs. Needs of others and prayer requests that have come in. Work of local churches (**your church**) and Chapel on the Campus. Ministries training laborers for the harvest. Prayer groups, world revival and Israel. GOD's people to be ready for JESUS CHRIST'S SECOND COMING (II Cor. 11:2).

Praying For Government (Shaping History Through Prayer And Fasting)

<u>Scripture</u>: I exhort therefore, that, first of all, <u>supplications</u>, <u>prayers</u>, <u>intercessions</u>, and <u>giving of thanks</u>, be made for all men. For kings, and for all that are in authority; that we may lead a quiet and peaceable life in all godliness and honesty. For this is good and acceptable in the sight of God our Savior. Who will have all men to be saved, and to come unto the knowledge of the truth. (1 Tim. 2:1-4).

<u>**Comments:**</u> The church by its prayers stretches forth CHRIST's authority over the nations and their rulers. GOD puts the government first in prayer. Good government is according to GOD's will. At its worst, bad government either restricts or totally suppresses the universal right of men to believe in GOD and to express their faith by public worship and proclamation. We have the GOD' given power of prayer by which to bring about changes.

<u>Prayer</u>: We ask that GOD stretch forth CHRIST's authority over the nations and their rulers. We make supplications, prayers, intercessions, and giving of thanks for all men. We ask that GOD deal with bad government so that men can be saved. We pray for good government, and ask GOD to answer according to His will. We ask that GOD exercise his power to bring about the necessary changes.

Prayer For Loved Ones (Territorial Spiritual Warfare Prayers)

We pray for our loved ones. We confess Your Word over (**your loved ones**) (Moody's and Hughes', Chauncey's and Wilson's, Levy's and Hendrey's, Hostetler's, and Kalkan's) this day. Your Word will not return void to You and will accomplish what it says You will do. Teach us HOLY SPIRIT how to pray. We ask that you send warring angels over our loved ones, and extend Your Grace to their salvation. We pray that You open their spiritual eyes and deafened ears to hear Your Word.

Prayer For Jews

We pray for Jews around the world to come into THE SAVING KNOWLEDGE OF JESUS CHRIST, Israel for its protection from enemies, messianic congregations, evangelistic organizations that are leading Jews to become Christians and Hebrews that have become Christians who sometimes call themselves Messianic Jews.

Prayer For Protection

Only THE FATHER, SON and HOLY SPIRIT can protect us. We thank You for this protection. We ask that you send our personal angels and reinforcements from the Third Heaven of legions of angels to place an impenetrable shield around us so that we will be protected from evil. We can not protect ourselves.

Prayer For Enemies

We pray for our enemies who are doing evil that they will get saved and JESUS CHRIST will become their LORD, MASTER AND SAVIOR. We send our blessings and love to them as a weapon to break down the barriers against JESUS CHRIST. May GOD bring them into salvation and truth, bless them with spiritual blessings and meet their needs out of His Riches in Glory.

Prayer For America

We plead for forgiveness for innocent blood of millions of babies offered in sacrifice to Molech, Baal, Chemosh, Milcom, Shamash and others (the gods of child sacrifice). We humble ourselves in repentance. We grieve over sins of ourselves and nation. We ask you to forgive us and nation cursed for loving and serving money and material things more than you. Help us to turn from wicked ways and seek your face. Forgive us and The Church for allowing liberalism to creep into our hearts and destroy the testimony of The Church.

Innocent blood has covered America and we surely deserve your judgment. Shake America and show our nation what you think about sins. Shake the churches and show Christians how they have failed America and You. We pray for everyone connected to this nation that they will turn from sin and come back to GOD. Show our churches how they are responsible for the spiritual state of the nation; Christians - the spiritual state of the world.

We pray that GOD will be THE LORD of America, expose evil to the world, unravel the interlocking of evil groups, bring confusion in their midst, defeat their plans and loose

the heavenly powers against our enemies who want to destroy America. We command the powers of Satan to fight against themselves.

We pray that Christians would agree with each other, enter into spiritual warfare and expose evil to the world. We pray that Americans will put their hope in GOD, and for our government and victims of terrorism.

We pray that everyone will see that their lives are threatened by Islam that does not tolerate anyone who does not believe in Allah. Show the world that Allah is not GOD. Islamic teaching from the Koran of violence results in terrible deeds, brutal dehumanizing treatment of women, persecution and elimination of non-Muslims, millions killed, thousands enslaved, no freedom of religion and the press, crimes charged against Christians, and conversion from Islam to Christianity ends in death.

Prayer for Other Christians

I AM HUMBLY GRATEFUL FOR THOSE WHO HAVE PRAYED FOR ME, AND I STAND WITH THEM IN PRAYER FOR THEIR NEEDS. I PRAY FOR CHRISTIANS AND THOSE WHO DO NOT KNOW JESUS CHRIST as LORD, MASTER AND SAVIOR.

Prayer for Enemies

Alexander the Coppersmith did me much evil: THE LORD reward him according to his works (2 Tim. 4:14). THE LORD reward our enemies according to their works. We pray for deliverance and healing from the works of our enemies.

Prayer for Money Worshippers

We pray for those whose God Is Money and Worship Satan that are headed for Hell. We pray for their salvation and that GOD would cause them to see what they are doing to themselves. We pray that GOD will expose their actions to the world. We ask GOD for spiritual warfare against the forces of evil that control these people.

Prayer for the Heathen

I pray that you laugh at and mock your enemies, have them in derision and cause them to reap what they sow. We ask GOD to give us the heathen for our inheritance, and the uttermost parts of the earth for our possessions. We pray that the godly bands will not be broken and the godly cords cast away.

Prayer for Personal Relationships

We ask for personal relationships with GOD. We ask GOD to go before us and flow through us. We ask GOD to spiritually cleanse ourselves and what He has given us.

Prayer For The Covenant Of The Blood

We cover us with THE BLOOD OF THE LAMB, JESUS CHRIST. We agree with THE COVENANT OF THE BLOOD. We sing songs about THE BLOOD OF JESUS CHRIST. We apply THE BLOOD, THE CROSS, THE COVENANT and THE WORD OF GOD which destroys death and power of the enemy.

We repent of any sin. With THE STRIPES OF JESUS CHRIST, we are healed (Isa. 53:4-5; 1 Pet. 2:24). THE BLOOD OF JESUS CHRIST was shed for our atonement and physical healing. THE LIFE OF JESUS CHRIST is driving out our sickness, disease and weakness. We pray, meditate and praise THE LORD JESUS CHRIST for salvation, healing and wholeness.

Prayer For A Hedge Of Protection

We ask GOD to put a hedge around us, seal our property and possessions with angels, and send angels to be stationed on our properties to guard us. We call for THE ANGEL OF THE LORD to fight for us. We ask GOD to send guardian and warrior angels, and twelve legions of angels as reinforcement for spiritual and physical warfare on our behalf. We ask for warrior angels to protect us and fight for us. We ask the angels to remove the ropes, shackles, chains, bonds and bands from those being ministered to. See Psa. 34:7 & 91:11-13; Heb. 1:14.

We ask GOD to send angels ahead of us to prepare the way, for the angels to go with us wherever we go, and leave angels where we have ministered to continue the works. We ask the angels to read Scripture to the demons until they leave. We ask GOD to send His Anger, Wrath, Indignation And Trouble on those who would destroy Christianity. We ask GOD to send angels with boxes to separately seal each demon in, chain and gag the demons, read Scripture to the demons and fill the boxes with THE GLORY OF GOD.

Prayer For Defiling The Temple Of God

Forgive us for defiling THE TEMPLE OF GOD, and demonic imaginations and visualizations (witchcraft). We confess sins and iniquities (sins, wickedness and evil deeds) of our fathers and nation. We forgive those who have sinfully affected us. We ask GOD to close demonic doorways. We ask GOD to cleanse by THE POWER AND BLOOD OF JESUS CHRIST.

Prayer for the Catholic Church

We forgive the Catholic Church, and other religions, organizations and people <u>for cursing</u> <u>Christians with anath'e'ma</u>. We break and reverse the great curses, damnation and <u>destruction placed on us and our descendants</u>.

Prayer For The Deceitful

Hold not thy peace, O GOD my praise: For <u>the mouth of the wicked and the mouth of</u> <u>the deceitful</u> are opened against me: they have spoken against me with <u>a lying tongue</u>. They compassed me about also with <u>words of hatred</u>; and fought against me without a cause. For my love they are my <u>adversaries</u>: but I give myself unto prayer. And they have rewarded me <u>evil</u> for good, and <u>hatred</u> for my love.

Prayer for Favor

WE ASK GOD FOR THE HEATHEN FOR OUR INHERITANCE, AND THE UTTERMOST PARTS OF THE EARTH FOR OUR POSSESSION. WE ASK AND

<u>RECEIVE</u>; <u>SEEK AND FIND</u>; <u>KNOCK AND IT WILL BE OPENED</u>. We stand in the gap. We ask GOD for families, ministries, churches, parishes, counties, cities, states, nations and the world that The Gospel would be proclaimed and bear fruit. We ask GOD to restrain the territorial darkness that would prevent The Gospel. We ask GOD to persecute them for their ungodly acts.

Prayer to Follow God's Will

Forgive us for: failure to align ourselves with GOD's WILL, known sin and rebellion, emotional stress and trauma, submissions to an ungodly cover, inherited curses, worldly art and music, ownership of unclean objects; failure to cleanse property and places, and tithe; unforgiveness, idolatry, and a lack of separation from the things of the world. We agree to cleanse our beings, possessions and homes of unclean objects. We ask for forgiveness, confess contact with the occult and sins of the fathers, and renounce evil.

We ask for: THE FRUITS, GIFTS, SIGNS, ANOINTING and LEADERSHIP OF THE HOLY SPIRIT, THE AUTHORITY OF JESUS CHRIST and THE POWER OF ALMIGHTY GOD to minister to the people. We stand behind the protection: THE HEDGE OF GOD (Job 1 & 2) and our shield of faith (Eph. 6:16).

<u>Praver</u>: We forgive, repent and renounce involvement in Inheritance, Unclean and Unholy Things, Territorial Rights Violations, Performance Of Demonic Rituals, Distinct Situations And Actions, and General. We forgive and repent for our nationalities, ancestors, ourselves, descendents, mates and others for cursing us. We break the curses placed on us from these sources.

<u>Prayer</u>: I pray that GOD will destroy the weapons of His enemies. I pray that GOD will use His Weapons against our enemies.

PRAYERS FOR CHURCHES Prayer For Christianity

We pray for GOD's Good and against Satan's Evil. We pray for Jehovah's Religion and against Lucifer's False Religion. We pray for Christianity and against The New World Order which is AntiChrist. We pray for the coming of JESUS CHRIST, The True Messiah, and against Satan, The False Messiah.

Prayer For Apostate Church

We pray for the Apostate Church that you would awake them and show them THE JUDGMENT OF GOD. We pray that you would bring deliverance into The Church. We pray for signs, wonders and miracles brought by THE POWER AND ANOINTING OF GOD. We pray for Christians everywhere to enter into spiritual warfare.

PRAYER TO ESTABLISH BASIS FOR WARFARE (INTENSE SPIRITUAL WARFARE)

I Forgive Anyone That Has Had Spiritual, Secular Or Carnal Authority Over Me Including Mental, Physical And Financial. I Forgive Ancestors And Anyone That Has Hurt, Cursed Or Controlled Me. I Break Curses, Control And Soul Ties Brought Upon Me By Them. I Ask That God Bless And Forgive Them, And Save Their Souls. I Set Myself Free From Those Who Would Hurt Me.

Forgive Me Lord For My Many Sins. I Forgive Myself For Sinning Against My Body. I Break Curses And Soul Ties That I Have Brought Upon Myself.

PRAYER BEFORE DELIVERANCE (PERSONAL DELIVERANCE OR MASS DELIVERANCE)

We ask god to send the holy spirit, the seven-fold spirit of god, warrior angels, ministering angels and twelve legions of angels. We ask the warrior angels to come with their flaming, sharp two-edged swords capable of dividing spirit and soul.

We ask god to surround us, cut off communications between the demons outside and the demons inside, and remove loose demons around us.

We bind fallen angels and demons, and loose ourselves from them. We call for spiritual warfare to set the captives free. We bind forces of evil, and loose forces of good that we have the power and authority to do so.

PRAYERS

Prayer For Christianity

We pray for GOD's Good and against Satan's Evil. We pray for Jehovah's Religion and against Lucifer's False Religion. We pray for Christianity and against The New World Order which is AntiChrist. We pray for the coming of JESUS CHRIST, The True Messiah, and against Satan, The False Messiah.

Prayer For Apostate Church

We pray for the Apostate Church that you would awake them and show them THE JUDGMENT OF GOD. We pray that you would bring deliverance into The Church. We pray for signs, wonders and miracles brought by THE POWER AND ANOINTING OF GOD. We pray for Christians everywhere to enter into spiritual warfare.

Prayer Against Violent Weather

Violent Weather: We fast, pray and have faith in GOD. We have the right to use THE NAME OF JESUS CHRIST because we are Christians. This gives us the authority to command the weather caused by evil forces. We bind satanic power of evil weather. We loose THE POWER OF GOD to bring restoration from violent weather.

We bind and take authority over territorial spirits in the second heaven ruling over demonic weather and hurricanes. We ask the warring angels to destroy the winds, waves and violent weather.

We ask for supernatural protection of GOD's people, that there would be no injuries or deaths, nor any damage to their homes or property. We pray for protection of Christians as judgment comes upon America and the world.

<u>Hurricanes</u>: We pray a shield of Jesus between the water and the winds, so the spirits of Poseidon, leviathan, Neptune and Hercules can not rise up out of the waters, and give strength and acceleration to the spirits of storms, hurricanes, tornadoes, high winds, destructive winds and killer winds. We dispatch Michael and the warring angels into the storm and capture all of the demon spirits to destroy the storm.

We bind the god of the hurricane (name of hurricane). We speak confusion into the mind of the hurricane. We command the hurricane to weaken. We reverse the curses of witchcraft affecting violent weather.

Prayer Against Witches

My son pray My Word, <u>Ex. 22:18, Thou shalt not suffer a witch to live</u>. <u>Gen. 6:3a</u> <u>And THE LORD said</u>, <u>My Spirit shall not always strive with man</u>. We release Your Word to do its work according to Your Will and as You direct by YOUR SPIRIT.

PRAYER FOR NATIONAL SINS

If my people, which are called by my name (Christians), <u>shall humble themselves</u>, and pray, and seek my face, and turn from their wicked ways; then will I <u>hear</u> from Heaven, and will <u>forgive</u> their sin, and will <u>heal their land</u> (Daniel 7:14).

We forgive America FOR THE SINS COMMITTED ESPECIALLY THE SHEDDING OF INNOCENT BLOOD, AND AGREEMENT AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO OTHER NATIONS TO SHED INNOCENT BLOOD. We are cursed by sins of America. We break national curses and that have come upon us and our descendents.

PRAYER FOR JUDGMENTS

We ask that You shake and awake The World, America and Christianity before Satan takes over in The Tribulation. ALMIGHTY GOD, nothing happens without your permission because You are in complete control. We ask that Christians pray to GOD and enter into spiritual warfare daily against Satan's Kingdom Of Evil. We agree with THE JUDGMENTS OF GOD and ask that You have mercy on Christians.

We ask that you bring judgment on the world, America and the church of Jesus Christ so that they will repent of their sins. The four sore acts of judgment include the sword, famine, pestilence and noisome beasts (war, starvation, disease and ferocious animals). We ask that you have mercy and grace on true Christians (the elect and remnant) in the midst of judgment. Almighty god, we deserve and accept your judgment which is perfect.

Pray specifically for what you are facing. Satan, God Of This World, can only do what You allow him to do. We ask that You send warring angels, ministering angels, THE HOLY SPIRIT AND THE SEVEN FOLD SPIRIT OF GOD to do battle with supernatural troubles, calamities and disasters not of GOD.

PRAYER OF FORGIVENESS

I forgive my ancestors, descendents and others, ask you to forgive me and I forgive myself for worshiping traditions and idols, alcohol and drug abuse, rape, sexual abuse and perversion, murder, self bitterness and hatred, occult, Americans and religions for suppressing religious and cultural practices, having to depend on welfare, reversing gender roles; multiple spouses; false religions and demonic beliefs, ceremonies, dances and rituals, having demonic paraphernalia, talismans, amulets, charms, spirit poles, objects, adornment and tattoos; sins of Alaskan Natives, Indians and Eskimos; Russians, traders, soldiers and others for mistreating my ancestors; those who brought alcoholism, drug addiction, heart disease, diabetes, fetal alcohol syndrome, serious abuse of women and children, incarceration and suicide upon my people; being warlike, taking slaves, barbarism, torture and cruelty; following shamans and wise men; for worshiping and following demons; tribes, clans and groups for their demonic beliefs; preferential female infanticide; following myths and legends; transvestites, adultery, wife swapping and incest; seeking help from evil spirits; worshipping animals and their spirits; reincarnation and ancestor worship; acquiring guardian spirits; seeking forbidden knowledge; demonic healing and divination; worship of nature and earth; transformation into animals and animals into humans; fears of death and shamans; mistreating and killing slaves; cutting the flesh; using human fat and mummies; magic and witchcraft; superstition and taboos; insanity, severe sickness, early death and diseases of Alaska. I do this in THE NAME OF JESUS CHRIST: LORD, MASTER AND SAVIOR. We come against spirits that have been renounced and legal rights taken away, and command that they come out with their families and works as their names are called.

SECTION 6 - COUNTERFEIT BIBLES

CONTENTS

- 1. Scripture
- 2. Proclamation
- 3. Proof Of The Bible
- 4. Proof Of The King James Bible
- 5. Warning
- 6. King James Version
- 7. Manuscripts
- 8. Attack
- 9. Leaders
- 10. Satan's Goal
- 11. Different Versions
- 12. Truth
- 13. The NIV Taketh Away
- 14. The Bible Shop
- 15. Comparison Of Bible Verses

SCRIPTURE

Deut. 4:2 Ye shall <u>not add</u> unto The Word which I command you, <u>neither shall ye</u> <u>diminish</u> ought from it, that ye may keep the commandments of THE LORD YOUR GOD which I command you.

Prov. 30:5 Add thou not unto His Words, lest He reprove thee, and thou be found a liar.

Matt. 5:18 see Deut. 4:2 & 12:32, Prov. 30:6 and Luke 16:17 For verily I say unto you, Till Heaven and earth pass, one jot (smallest letter) or one title (certain Hebrew letters) shall in no wise pass from the law, till <u>all be fulfilled</u>.

Rev. 22:18-19 For I testify unto every man that heareth the words of the prophecy of this book, If any man shall add unto these things, <u>God shall add unto him the plagues that are written in this book</u>: And if any man shall take away from the words of the book of this prophecy, <u>God shall take away his part out of the book of life, and out of the holy city</u>, and from the things which are written in this book.

PROCLAMATION

Not add unto The Word, <u>neither shall ye diminish</u>, and thou be found a liar. Till all be fulfilled. God shall add unto him the plagues that are written in this book. <u>God shall take</u> away his part out of the book of life, and out of the holy city, and from the things which are written in this book.

PROOF OF THE BIBLE

There are many scientific ways of proving that the Bible is god's word. Some books are a scientific approach to biblical mysteries, a scientific approach to more biblical mysteries,

numbers in scripture, mathematics prove holy scriptures and biblical mathematics - keys to scripture numerics.

Scriptural knowledge is power if you use it. You will see GOD do signs, wonders and miracles, the power and anointing of GOD, and people's lives changed before you. Believers have power of attorney over power of Satan.

Creation literally occurred in six 24-hour days and began approximately 6,000 years ago. Evolution undermines the authority of GOD and His Word, and invalidates the purpose of CHRIST's death on The Cross. We must have trust, commitment and loyalty toward The Bible.

PROOF OF THE KING JAMES BIBLE

The following books will prove in detail that the King James Bible is the true word of god: in awe of thy word - understanding the King James Bible - its mystery & history letter by letter, which Bible is god's word? Answers to common questions concerning modern versions and translations, the language of the King James Bible - uncovers NIV, NKJV, KJ2I, NASB pitfalls, new age Bible versions - an exhaustive documentation exposing the massage, men and manuscripts moving mankind to the Antichrist's one world religion, which Bible can we trust?, archaic words and the authorized version, defending the King James Bible - god's word kept intact in English, let's weigh the evidence - which Bible is the real word of god?, an understandable history of the Bible, if the foundations be destroyed, which translation should you trust? - a defense of the authorized King James version of 1611, why would god write two Bibles?, the new Athenians - word changers at seats and tables of learning - thieves and robbers of words of god.

WARNING

WARNING! NEVER ADD TO OR TAKE AWAY FROM GOD'S WORDS! YOUR ETERNAL SPIRIT AND SOUL ARE AT RISK!

KING JAMES VERSION

King James 1611 Authorized Version Bible is now held in reproach. It has been replaced by Roman Catholic Bible versions. The King James Version is the only one that is a faithful copy and accurate translation of the originals.

MANUSCRIPTS

The Textus Receptus represents 99% and the Westcott / Hort represents 1% of extant Greek manuscripts. It was produced from one stream of thousands of manuscripts that all agree together.

ATTACK

The Bible is under assault! For an influential group of academic, government and media elites, it's the source of most of the evil in the world today. Everywhere one turns, from television, to mainstream news magazines, to the current avalanche of best-selling atheist tracts, The Bible is ridiculed and condemned. The critics say The Bible is full of fables

masquerading as history, and that it has regularly incited people to violence and immorality. A major cause is the way GOD's Word is despised today.

There are adulterated versions written to uphold false doctrine and strong delusion, not endure sound doctrine, twisted theological concoction, politically correct and helping to create an apostate church. There are insults, harassment, defaming, debasing, ridicule, opposition and retaliation commercially, politically and spiritually against The Holy Bible and those who use it. There is manipulation by those with a theological agenda. There can be perversion, literary adultery and an attempt to change basic cardinal doctrines of the Christian faith.

LEADERS

Bible teachers routinely state that there is no Lucifer based on contemporary translations. Most church leaders do not believe they have the true WORDS OF GOD. Because of teaching and false Bibles, only a small percentage of the population still hold a truly biblical worldview.

SATAN'S GOAL

This is a blending into the one-world Bible for the one-world church. Changes diminish the power and authority of JESUS CHRIST and position the emerging AntiChrist world order.

DIFFERENT VERSIONS

There are about one hundred versions of Bibles. Beware of false Bibles, false doctrines and false purposes. Different versions will censor, change, add, delete, sabotage, slander, diminish, omit, bury, alter, water down and cast doubt on the truth of GOD'S WORD. The vast assortment of modern Bibles, and the fact that they contradict each other and leave out important verses, contributes to the confusion of the spiritual drifters.

There is a famine for THE WORD OF GOD not being preached. There are phony translations and false Bibles. There is the false gospel of Roman Catholicism that is sending countless millions to Hell. It has likely sent as many to Hell as has Islam by damming millions. The gospel has been perverted, compromised and catholicized.

The King James 1611 Authorized Bible Vs. The NIV Version The NIV removes words along with thee, thou, thou shalt nots for a total of over 63,000 omissions.

TRUTH

The Holy Bible is absolutely true and the absolute authority. The Bible is the inspired, inerrant, infallible WORDS OF GOD. The King James Version of The Bible is the source of all truth and the whole truth.